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INNOVATING TO
HELP CLIENTS
SUCCEED

We proudly support local businesses because
we know that our clients are the heart of our
community. We work closely with our customers
to get to know them individually and understand
their business and personal financial needs.
Banesco USA offers innovative solutions to keep

our customers business growing strong.
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’ Banesco Center
150 Alhambra Circle, Suite 100
Coral Gables, FL 33134



banescousa.com

’ Weston
316 Indian Trace, Weston Lakes Plaza
Weston, FL 33326

' Doral
9500 NW 41st Street, Suite 100
Doral, FL 33178

’ Palm Aire
6499 Powerline Road
Fort Lauderdale, FL 33309

’ Puerto Rico
255 Ponce de Le6n Ave. Suite 124
Hato Rey, PR 00917
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BANESCO
INTERNATIONAL

Dominican Republic

ﬁ e Puerto Rico

v Curacao

Panama

Colombia Q

¥,

Multinational Loan Portfolio $33.14 billion
Multinational Deposit Portfolio $39.46 billion

<R
(€9

More than 8.6 million customers
More than 17,000 staff members



JORGE SALAS
PRESIDENT & CEO
Banesco USA

Dear Banesco USA customers, investors and friends,

It is my pleasure to present to you our Annual Report, which includes a
summary of our performance during 2015. The results this past year represent
our commitment to the Values that define us: Responsibility, Reliability,
Quality and Innovation. On behalf of Banesco USA, | would like to extend my
gratitude to all of you for being part of our progress and helping us making
2015 another successful year.

At the end of 2015, Banesco USA’s total assets consisted of $942.6 million;
an increase of $22.3 million compared to 2014. Thanks to a strong customer
relationship focus and the ability to develop solid new business relationships,
our non-interest bearing demand deposit accounts increased by $33 million
(11%). The net loan portfolio reached $687.7 million at the close of 2015,
growing 7% compared to the previous year.

Over the years, we have been successful in establishing ourselves as a
competitor in the South Florida financial market. Our focus remains on
the local market, and we will gear towards small and medium businesses;
providing them products and services tailored to their unique needs.

Innovation is ingrained as a core value to our growth. This year, in addition
to launching new electronic services, we are expanding our lines of business
with the creation of Banesco Premium for personal clients with special
financial needs.

| am confident that Banesco USA will continue to grow and support its local
community by establishing long-term relationships. We are dedicated to
seeking continual growth and improvement to ensure the highest quality in
our products and services. Thank you for working with us to make 2015
another great year. May we continue to build a path of success as a leading
financial institution built on trust in our local community.

Sincerely,
Jorge Salas

b S
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(3IVING LIFE TO QOUR VALUES

Being part of the Banesco family carries great responsibility;
every project, task, and assignment must be carried out with
great enthusiasm, dedication, honesty and commitment.
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LEARNING FROM (QUR EXPERIENCES

Years of experience have taught us that success lies in work

inspired by Banesco’s values. These values have always

distinguished us as a company and as individuals; they have
helped us become a leading company. Today, we are recognized

for the strength and charisma of our talented team:

B Responsibility
We respond to our obligations
with accuracy and passion. We
stand by our commitment. We
use our time wisely. We give the
best to everyone.

B Reliability
We say the truth under all
circumstances. We respond
with honesty. We acknowledge
our mistakes. We ask for
assistance when necessary.

B Quality
We perform every task with
the utmost care. We intend
to be the best. We strive to
exceed the expectations of
our stakeholders.

B Innovation
We are visionary. We offer
new solutions. We seek
ideas and technologies that
promote change.
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- PERSONAL BANKING

¥ Domestic and International

2 Personal Products

8

% Both offer personal checking accounts,
- interest checking, money market, savings
o and certificate of deposit.

S Moreover, Banesco USA offers

T . . . .
3 individuals an array of loans to fit their
g needs including residential mortgage

w

loans, home equity loans, auto loans and
boat loans.

OUR
PRODUCTS

BUSINESS BANKING

Domestic and International
Business Products

Both offer business checking accounts,
money market, savings and certificate of
deposit. Moreover, Banesco USA offers
businesses a variety of commercial loans
designed to fit their needs.

These include: Commercial real estate,
term commercial loans, line of credit, asset
guaranteed loan and owner occupied / SBA
504.






B Accounts

= Tansfers

S 8ilpay

OUR

SERVICES

We offer banking services that enhance the
effectiveness of all your financial plans and
goals through our electronic channels.

banescousa.com

60

VSN ooseueg

$90IAI8S INO



ot

VSN oosaueg

s1onpoud ino

BanescOnline

The convenience of simple and secure access to
your accounts from any computer with an Internet
connection for free.

BanescoMobile
An application for smartphones that allows clients
to access their accounts anywhere at any time.

Person to Person Transfer

Payment feature that allows clients to send
and recieve secure electronic payments to
people using their email address or mobile
phone number without sharing any confidential
information.

BanescoMobile Check Deposit

A service available on the BanescoMobile app
for iphone®, ipad®, and android™ devices that
allows clients to deposit checks to their accounts
any time, anywhere. It’'s as easy to use as the
phone’s camera.



B Merchant Services

In collaboration with First Data, one of the leading
credit and debit card processors in the world, we
offer a Merchant Services program for Domestic
Business customers:
- Low cost credit and debit card processing
- All major credit cards are processed:
Visa®, MasterCard®, American Express®,
Discover Network®, Diners Club®, JCB®
- Terminals (POS) wireless or integrate with a PC

Banesco Visa® Check Card

Gives clients a wide array of services, so they
can easily and safely manage their Personal and
Business Accounts.

LI
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‘| think what they really bring is a
partnership relationship. they’re more
than a bank — They’re really focused on /
their clients. It's relationship banking,
which is a little unique these days.?

- Kramerica Lender
Client since 09/2012 ‘
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS

CARLOS PALOMARES
Chairman of the Board

Banking executive with more than 40 years of experience in
U.S. and international financial markets.

Former Chairman of Miami Dade County’s Beacon Council,
Enterprise Florida board member; member of Greater Miami
Chamber of Commerce Executive Committee.

Graduate of New York University.

JORGE SALAS

President and CEO
Banking executive with extensive experience as an international banker
and a member of the Banesco Group for 16 years.

Graduate of Universidad Metropolitana, Caracas and the University of
Chicago.

Luis XAVIER [ UJAN
Director and Investor
Economist with more than 25 years of experience in the financial sector.

Founding partner of the Banesco Financial Organization; currently serving
as Banesco Seguros Board Chairman.

Graduate of the Universidad Catélica Andrés Bello.

RICARDO AYALA
Director

Banking executive with more than 20 years of experience in
the financial sector, where he has held several senior-level
management positions.

Served on the Boards of several large financial institutions,
Chairman of Banesco Panama.

Graduate of the University of Miami.
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FREDERICK BRENNER
Director Emeritus

Banking executive with more than 40 years of senior-level commercial bank

management experience, holding management positions in banks in Latin
America and the U.S.

Graduate of the University of California (Berkeley).

AUGUSTO J . SIGARRETA
Director

Banking executive with more than 40 years of experience who has held key

positions at a multinational bank level.

Graduate of the University of Puerto Rico.

SENO BRIL
Director

Owner of real estate firm The Decorus Group, has more
than 30 years of experience in senior management roles
in the consumer financial services industry in the U.S. and
international markets.

Graduate of the Institute of International Studies in Geneva.

FRANCISCO J PAREDES
Director

Retired Senior Partner of Deloitte & Touche, LLP with Regional Executive
responsibilities for Latin America and the Caribbean.40 years of public

accounting experience serving domestic and International clients in diversified

industries and with transactions in the capital markets.
Former Chairman of the State of Florida Board of Accountancy.

Graduate of Florida State University.

MERCEDES ESCOTET
Secretary of the Board

Executive with more than 25 years of executive management experience
in both international and domestic banking; one of the key executives
responsible for the organization of Banesco USA.

Graduate of Simo6n Bolivar University and the University of West Virginia.
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MANAGEMENT

TEAM

JORGE SALAS
President and CEO

Mr. Salas has extensive experience as an international
banker and has been a member of the Banesco Group for 16
years. A former executive with the Inter-American Investment
Corporation, Mr. Salas holds Masters degrees in Business
Administration and Public Policy from the University of
Chicago.

MARITZA ABADIA

Executive Vice-President
Puerto Rico Country Manager

Ms. Abadia is a professional banker and certified public
accountant with more than 30 years experience in Corporate
Banking.

MERCEDES ESCOTET

Executive Vice-President
Chief Financial Officer

Ms. Escotet is responsible for directing Banesco’s overall
financial, accounting, budget, credit, tax, and treasury
functions as well as being the Secretary to the Board of
Directors.

[Louis M. FERREIRA

Executive Vice-President
Chief Credit and Risk Officer

Mr. Ferreira is a financial industry veteran with experience
as both a lender and federal banking regulator. He has held
senior positions with banks in NJ and NY, as well as the
Office of Comptroller of the Currency. Mr. Ferreira has been
recognized for his role in examinations across all banking
business lines.
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ALINA D. GARCIA-DUANY

Executive Vice-President

Chief Lending Officer

Ms. Garcia-Duany has been a Banker for over 30 years. She
is responsible for the production of the Bank’s commercial,
residential, construction and consumer loans as well as Trade
Business and Correspondent Banking.

LLuis ALFREDO (3RAU

Senior Vice-President

International Depositary Sales and Services

Mr. Grau is responsible for the relationship with all
International Customers. Mr. Grau will apply his expertise
in International Markets to provide the clients with financial
and investment solutions that are aligned with the values of
Banesco USA.

[LLETICIA PINO

Executive Vice-President
Operations Officer

Ms. Pino currently serves as the Executive Vice President &
Operations Officer who brings over 30 years of experience
from both international and domestic operations. She is
responsible for the daily operations of the Bank as well as
Human Resources and other administrative areas.

ALBA PRESTAMO

Executive Vice-President
Chief BSA and Compliance Officer

Ms. Prestamo brings over 36 years of experience, with vast
expertise in risk management, including overseeing the Bank
Secrecy Act and anti-money laundering compliance.

ARMANDO TRABANCO

Senior Vice-President
Head of Branch Business

Mr. Trabanco serves as SVP/ Head of Branch Business. He
brings over 30 years of experience in local Branch Banking
to Banesco USA. He is responsible for the daily Branch
Business and for identifying opportunities to better serve
Banesco USA clients and our Community.
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MANAGEMENT
[DISCUSSION
AND ANALYSIS

Financial Condition and Results of Operations

The following management’s discussion and analysis (MD&A)

is intended to assist readers in understanding the financial

condition and results of operations of the Bank as of December

31, 2015 and for the year then ended. This discussion should

be read in conjunction with the audited financial statements,

accompanying footnotes and other supplemental financial data
included in this annual report.




. TOTAL ASSETS

. Total Assets closed the year 2015 at $942.6 million

Total assets closed the year 2015 at $942.6
million, an increase of $22.3 million, or 2
percent, compared to the previous year. The
net loan portfolio, which closed the year at
$687.7 million, or 73 percent of total assets,
grew by 7 percent since the end of 2014.

The investment securities portfolio of $190.2
million at the end of 2015, or 20 percent

of total assets, decreased by 16 percent
compared to the previous year. Cash and
cash equivalents showed an increase of $13.6
million, or 41 percent, compared to 2014.
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CAsH AND EQUIVALENTS

The Bank continues to maintain
significantly high liquidity levels as part of
its asset-liability management strategies.
A significant part of those strategies is
holding liquid assets in the form of cash
and cash equivalents, primarily deposits
with the Federal Reserve Bank. At the
close of 2015, cash and cash equivalents
reached $46.4 million, 7 percent of

total assets, an increase of 41 percent
compared to the close of 2014.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

The investment portfolio, which
represents approximately 20 percent of
total assets, is composed of

high-quality debt instruments issued by
U.S. Government Agencies (25 percent),
U.S. Government Sponsored Enterprises
MBSs (42 percent), U.S. Government
Sponsored Enterprises CMOs (2 percent),
Municipal Securities (12 percent) and
Corporate Securities (19 percent).

The composition of the investment
securities portfolio at December 31, 2015
is illustrated in the chart on page 30.

The Bank manages its investment portfolio
with strategies designed to provide the
optimum combination of liquidity, interest
income, credit risk and market risk. The
investment portfolio’s market and credit
risks are managed on a continuous basis
by the Bank’s Treasury Unit and monitored
by the bank’s ALCO Committee.

LoANS, NET

The net loan portfolio reached $687.7
million at the close of 2015, growing
$44.1 million, or 7 percent, compared

to the previous year. This increase was
primarily driven by prudent growth in
Commercial and Residential Real Estate
loan portfolios which grew a total of
$52.4 million or 11 percent. Offset by a
reduction in Commercial and Industrial
and Trade Finance loan portfolios of $7.6
million or 4 percent.

Due to improvement in South Florida’s
Real Estate market, the Bank strategy in
2015 was to increase its exposure in this
sector without significantly increasing
concentration and maintaining an adequate
porfolio diversification.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets increased $1.2 million compared
to prior year. Other assets consist of:

$3.4 million in Property and equipment, net,
which decreased $1.2 million from prior year
mostly attributed to depreciation expense.

$2.4 million in accrued interest receivable
which increased $0.2 million compared to
prior year.

$5.6 million in Deferred Tax Assets which
increased $1.6 million compared to prior year.
This increase is a result of an increase in the
Allowance for Loan Losses and an increase
in the deferred tax benefit as a result of

the unrealized loss in the AFS investment
porfolio, which is higher than prior year.

$2.8 million in foreclosed assets that is a net
decrease of $0.05 million in other real estate
owned from prior year.

$2.0 million in prepaid and other assets,
which increased by $0.6 million compared
to prior year.



L.IABILITIES

DEPrPOSITS AND SECURITIES SOLD
UNDER AGREEMENT TO REPURCHASE

Deposits and securities sold under in non-interest bearing demand deposits is
agreements to repurchase (repo accounts, the result of the collaboration of all business
including customer’s overnight sweep repo units in enriching existing customer
accounts) reached an all-time high of $819.3 relationships as a way of building a solid
million at the close of 2015, representing an foundation on which new relationships can
increase of $38.6 million from 2014. be indentified and developed. There was an

increase in interest bearing accounts of $7.5
million which helped stimulate the growth in
2015. Repo accounts decreased $1.8 million
compared to the previous year.

Non-interest bearing demand deposit
accounts increased by $33 million or 11
percent and represented 42 percent of total
deposits at the close of 2015. The increase

banescousa.com
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ADVANCES FROM

THE FEDERAL HOME
[LOAN BANK

The Federal Home Loan Bank offers its

member institutions fixed or variable
rate secured lines of credit based on the

institution’s condition and creditworthiness.

The Bank utilizes medium to long-term
fixed rate advances as one of its pools

to manage balance sheet interest rate
sensitivity risk. Advances from the Federal
Home Loan Bank closed the year at $30
million, which decreased $20 million
compared to 2014. Only $10 million in
advances mature over 1 year and mature
within the next 3 years.

At December 31, 2015 the Bank had a
credit line of approximately $187 million,
with an unused borrowing capacity of
approximately $157 million.

STOCKHOLDER’S EQUITY

Stockholder’s equity grew by $1.6 million
or 2 percent during the year. Other
comprehensive income loss of $1.2 million,
primarily the after-tax net unrealized fair
value losses in the available for sale
investment portfolio were higher than in
2014 and Net income of $2.8 million were
the contributing factors for this increase in
shareholder’s equity.

Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital as a percentage
of Risk-Weighted Assets decreased to 12.1
percent in 2015 from 13.1 percent a year
earlier. Total Risk-Based Capital to Risk-
Weighted Assets decreased to 13.3 percent
in 2015 from 14.2 percent in 2014. These
decreases are the result of an increase of
12 percent in total Risk-Weighted Assets,
coupled with a less proportionate increase
of 3 percent in Tier 1 Risk-Based Capital
and Total Risk-Based Capital.

Total Risk-Weighted Assets increased
approximately $78.2 million, as a result

of the growth in the portion of the loan
portfolio allocated to a higher risk weight
category for regulatory capital computation
purposes.



NET INCOME

Net income of $2.8 million in 2015

Net income of $2.8 million in 2015
represents an increase from the net
income of $2.2 million in 2014. The main
driver contributing to these results was a
significant decrease in total non-interest
expenses of $2.3 million in 2015 or 6
percent from 2014 and an increase in
non-interest income of $0.1 million in 2015
or 2 percent from 2014.

banescousa.com

This positive result was offset by slight
decrease in the net interest margin, from
$33.9 million in 2014 to $33.3 million

in 2015, a decrease of $0.5 million or 2
percent, a provision for income taxes of
$1.6 million in 2015 compared to $1.1
million in 2014 and a provision for loan
losses of $0.8 million in 2015 compared to
$0.09 million in 2014.
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NET [NTEREST [NCOME

Net interest income before provision for
loan losses decreased $0.5 million, or 2
percent, to $33.3 million in 2015, from
$33.9 million in 2014. This was a result
of the positive interest income accretion
from the Security Bank purchase in 2012
having significantly been reduced in
2015 as compared to 2014. Excluding
the accretion income, net interest income
increased by 6 percent.

PROVISION FOR [LOAN
]LOSSES

The provision for loan losses totaled $0.8
million in 2015, an increase of $0.7 million
from 2014. The increase was mainly due to
the growth of the loan portfolio.

The South Florida real estate sector
continued to show signs of improvement
and unemployment is stabilizing, however,
challenges persist. The Bank was able

to achieve a continued low level of non-
performing loans throughout the current real
estate market cycle.

NON-INTEREST EXPENSE

Total non-interest expense decreased by
$2.3 million, or 6 percent, during the year.
The bank’s continued efforts in increasing
its efficiency were vital in being able to
reduce non-interest expenses in 2015.

NON-INTEREST [NCOME

In 2015, total non-interest income
increased by $0.1 million, or 2 percent.
The factors leading to this result were
higher Service Fees from loans and
deposits, Commissions and other fees
and gain on securities; partially offset by
lower gain on acquired assets.

Gain on securities for 2015 was $0.3
million; the sales of investment securities
available for sale stem from the Treasury
Unit’s ongoing assessment of the total
return profile of each security versus the
market for investments of similar risk,
the mitigation of the significant risk to
equity arising from prepayments (beyond
contractual) on investment securities
with material market appreciation, and
management of the duration of the
balance sheet.

INCOME T AXES

In 2015, the Bank recorded an income tax
expense of $1.6 million, compared to $1.1
million the prior year. This change is mainly
associated to higher income before taxes.



Total Assets

Total Gross Loans
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Total Deposits

Loan Portfolio

(millions)
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$49.4 $
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25.6%
Commercial & Industrial

15.7%
Residential Real Estate
47.6%

Commercial Real Estate

11.0%
Real Estate Construction
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Investment Portfolio

Deposit Portfolio

41.6%
Mortgage Back Securities

41.5%
Non-Interest Bearing DDA

U.S. Government Agencies
25.1%

19.0%
Corporate Debt

12.2%
Municipals

21%
Collateral Mortgage Obligations

Money Market and Savings
26.3%

19.6%
Time Deposits

12.7%
Interest Bearing DDA
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BANESCO USA
FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS

The Bank prepares its financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America. In
this section, we review the main variations of
the summary balance sheets and statements of
operations at the close of 2015 with respect to the
amounts presented at the close of 2014.

This statement has not been reviewed, or confirmed for accuracy
or relevance, by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation.




BANESCO USA

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014
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MORRISON BROWN ARGIZ & FARRA, LLC

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS AND ADVISORS

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders
of Banesco USA

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Banesco USA (the “Bank”) (a Florida corporation),
which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the related statements of operations,
statements of comprehensive income, changes in stockholders’ equity and cash flows for the years then ended,
and the related notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in accordance
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design,
implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audits. We conducted our
audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements
are free of material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk
assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Bank’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no
such opinion. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position
of Banesco USA as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, and the results of its operations and its cash flows for the
years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Wpwden. Eoswn, %ch Do

Miami, Florida
April 11, 2016

An Independent




BANESCO USA

BALANCE SHEETS
DECEMBER 31,

ASSETS 2015 2014
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS:
Cash and due from banks $ 5,284,185 $ 4,789,758
Restricted cash 892,326 -
Interest bearing deposits in other financial institutions 40,269,792 28,100,295
TOTAL CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 46,446,303 32,890,053
Investment securities available for sale 188,945,154 225,840,368
Investment securities held to maturity 1,233,050 -
Federal Home Loan Bank stock, at cost 2,103,500 2,988,300
Loans, net 687,666,775 643,582,475
Property and equipment, net 3,382,564 4,565,982
Accrued interest receivable 2,417,076 2,168,692
Foreclosed assets, net 2,796,500 2,850,721
Deferred tax assets 5,612,454 4,022,832
Prepaid expenses and other assets 1,961,096 1,376,009
TOTAL ASSETS $ 942,564,472 $ 920,285,432

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY

DEPOSITS:
Noninterest bearing demand deposits $ 339,082,289 $ 306,133,012
Interest bearing demand deposits 103,580,398 116,759,510
Money market and savings accounts 214,638,764 231,160,831
Time deposits of $100,000 or more 143,518,083 106,047,380
Time deposits of less than $100,000 16,330,754 16,639,770
TOTAL DEPOSITS 817,150,288 776,740,503
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2,138,907 3,950,013
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 30,000,000 50,000,000
Accrued interest payable 704,954 572,782
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 5,226,846 3,241,309
TOTAL LIABILITES 855,218,995 834,504,607

ve

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (NOTES 13 AND 15)

STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY:
Common stock, $5 par value; 6,000,000 shares authorized;

VSN ooseueq

5,926,304 shares issued and outstanding in 2015 and 2014 29,631,520 29,631,520
Additional paid-in capital 50,842,927 50,842,927
Retained earnings 9,817,510 7,049,084
Accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of taxes (2,946,480) (1,742,706)
TOTAL STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY 87,345,477 85,780,825
TOTAL LIABILITES AND STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY $ 942,564,472 $ 920,285,432

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2015 2014
INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME:
Loan and fees on loans 32,441,913 $ 31,900,808
Investment securities 4,307,770 5,187,479
Federal funds sold 95,878 109,511
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 104,748 53,127
TOTAL INTEREST AND DIVIDEND INCOME 36,950,309 37,250,925
INTEREST EXFENSES:
Deposits 3,151,809 2,991,395
Federal Home Loan Bank advances 451,779 393,228
Other borrowed funds 13,045 1,813
TOTAL INTEREST EXPENSES 3,616,633 3,386,436
NET INTEREST INCOME BEFORE FROVISION FOR
LOAN LOSSES 33,333,676 33,864,489
PROVISION FOR LOAN LOSSES 831,542 85,860
NET INTEREST INCOME AFTER PROVISION FOR
LOAN LOSSES 32,502,134 33,778,629
NONINTEREST INCOME:
Service fees on loans and deposits 3,948,699 3,124,174
Gain on sales of investment securities, (includes $337,908 and $146,319
accumulated other comprehensive income reclassifications for unrealized net
gains on available for sale securities, respectively) 337,908 146,319
Gain on resolution of acquired assets 330,490 1,585,891
Commissions and other 2,080,793 1,731,001
TOTAL NONINTEREST INCOME 6,697,890 6,587,385
NONINTEREST EXPENSES:
Salaries and employee benefits 22,587,496 22,578,530
Occupancy 3,068,981 3,117,935
Professional fees 1,597,569 4,176,359
Electronic data processing 1,584,469 1,691,284
FDIC insurance 1,289,481 1,244,378
Depreciation and amortization 1,533,386 1,553,744
Advertising 473,962 351,500
Communication 573,537 705,548
Travel and entertainment 341,236 263,537
Insurance and license fees 380,795 357,219
Office supplies 122,562 113,484
Foreclosed assets, net 123,531 88,091
Other 1,155,191 846,681
TOTAL NONINTEREST EXPENSES 34,832,196 37,088,290
INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAXES 4,367,828 3,277,724
PROVISION FOR INCOME TAXES, (includes approximately $127,000 and
$55,000 of income tax expenses from reclassification items, respectively) 1,509,402 1,099,804
NET INCOME 2,768,426 $ 2,177,920

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



banescousa.com

BANESCO USA

STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

2015
NET INCOME

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE LOSS, NET OF TAX

Unrealized gains (losses) on securities
Unrealized holding losses arising during period (net of income

taxes of approximately $600,000)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net
income (net of income taxes of approximately $127,000)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2014
NET INCOME
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX
Unrealized gains (losses) on securities
Unrealized holding gains arising during period (net of income
taxes of approximately $3,681,000)
Less: reclassification adjustment for gains included in net

income (net of income taxes of approximately $55,000)

COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

$ 2,768,426
$ (993,021)
(210,753) (1,203,774)
$ 1,564,652
$ 2,177,920
$ 6,283,620
(91,259) 6,192,361
$ 8,370,281
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BANESCO USA

STATEMENTS OF CHANGES IN STOCKHOLDERS' EQUITY
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

BALANCES AT JANUARY 1, 2014

Net income

Other comprehensive income
BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2014

Net income

Other comprehensive loss

BALANCES AT DECEMBER 31, 2015

Accumulated Other

Additional Comprehensive
Common Stock Paid-In Retained Loss,
Shares Par Value Capital Earnings Net of Taxes Total
5926304 $ 29,631,520 § 50842927 $ 4,871,164 $ (7,935,067) 77,410,544
- - - 2,177,920 - 2,177,920
- - - - 6,192,361 6,192,361
5,926,304 29,631,520 50,842,927 7,049,084 (1,742,708) 85,780,825
- - - 2,768,426 - 2,768,426
- - - - (1,203,774) (1,203,774)
5,926,304 § 29,631,520 § 50,842,927 § 9,817,510 § (2,946,480) 87,345,477

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANESCO USA

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEARS ENDED DECEMBER 31,

2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES:
Net income $ 2,768,426 $ 2,177,920
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by
operating activities:
Provision for loan losses 831,542 85,860
Provision for foreclosed assets 54,221 -
Depreciation and amortization 1,533,386 1,663,744
Net amortization of discounts on investment securities
available for sale 1,689,974 1,498,959
Net amortization of discounts on investment securities held to maturity 1,990 -
Gain on sales of investment securities avaiable for sale (337,908) (146,319)
Amortization of deferred loan fees 369,312 (123,420)
Amortization of intangible assets 93,670 93,670
Deferred income tax benefit (863,342) 167,046
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accrued interest receivable (248,384) 56,309
Prepaid expenses and other assets (678,757) (130,341)
Accrued interest payable 132,172 154,886
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 1,985,637 (744,903)
NET CASH PROVIDED BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 7,331,839 4,643,411
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES:
Purchase of investment securities available for sale (50,656,265) (53,889,406)
Purchase of investment held to maturity (1,249,411) -
Reduction (purchase) of Federal Home Loan Bank stock 884,800 (1,165,000)
Maturities and principal repayments on investment securities
available for sale 18,468,225 16,625,244
Principal repayments on held to maturity 14,370 -
Proceeds from sales of investment securities available for sale 65,801,135 54,340,939
Net increase in loans (45,285,154) (110,782,635)
Net purchase of property and equipment (349,968) (873,173)
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES (12,372,268) (95,744,031)
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES:
Net increase in deposits 40,409,785 61,110,537
Net (decrease) increase in securities sold under agreements to repurchase (1,813,1086) 1,325,142
Net (decrease) increase in Federal Home Loan Bank advances (20,000,000) 30,000,000
NET CASH PROVIDED BY FINANCING ACTIVITIES 18,596,679 92,435,679
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 13,556,250 1,335,059
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, BEGINNING OF YEAR 32,890,053 31,554,994
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS, END OF YEAR $ 46,446,303 $ 32,890,053
SUPPLEMENTAL DISCLOSURE OF CASH FLOW INFORMATION:
Change in unrealized gains on available for sale securities, net of tax $ (1,203,774) $ 6,192,361
Interest paid on deposits and borrowed funds $ 3,484,461 $ 3,231,550
Cash paid for income taxes $ 2,032,100 $ 1,946,057

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

GENERAL

Banesco USA (the “Bank”), a state-chartered bank, incorporated in the State of Florida. The Bank currently
operates in Southeast Florida and Puerto Rico, having seven offices in operation at December 31, 2015 and
2014. The Bank is a member of the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC™), is supervised and regulated
by the Office of the Financial Regulation of the State of Florida and by the FDIC.

The Bank offers a variety of banking services to individual and corporate customers through its banking offices
located in South Florida and Puerto Rico.

In December 2013, the Bank entered into a Consent Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and the Florida Office of Financial Regulation (OFR), in connection with certain deficiencies in its
compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) and Anti-Money Laundering (AML) laws and regulations. On April 1,
2016, the FDIC terminated the Consent Agreement issued to the Bank on December 5, 2013.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Accounting Policies

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America (“U.S. GAAP"). The following is a summary of the significant accounting
policies followed by the Bank.

The accounting policies and reporting practices of the Bank conform to the predominant practices in the banking
industry and are based on U.S. GAAP.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires management to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and
liabilities at the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the
reporting period. Actual results could differ significantly from those estimates. Material estimates that are
particularly susceptible to significant change in the near term relate to the determination of the allowance for loan
losses, determination of fair values of acquired assets and assumed liabilities, loss estimates related to acquired
loans and foreclosed assets, valuation of deferred tax assets and the fair value of financial instruments.

Acquisitions

The Bank accounts for all business combinations under the acquisition method of accounting in accordance with
Accounting Standard Codification (*ASC”) Topic 805. Accordingly, the acquiring institution should recognize and
measure the identifiable assets acquired, the liabilities assumed, and any non-controlling interests in the
acquiree, if any. The application of the acquisition method may result in the acquirer recognizing some assets
and liabilities not previously recognized by the acquiree. The acquiring institution should then recognize and
measure either goodwill or a gain on bargain purchase. In addition, acquisition-related costs and restructuring
costs are recognized as period expenses as incurred.

The Bank purchased substantially all the assets and assumed substantially all the liabilities of Security Bank, N.A
(SBNA) headquartered in Fort Lauderdale, Florida on May 4, 2012. The acquired assets and assumed liabilities
of this transaction were measured at estimated fair value. Management made significant estimates and exercised
significant judgment in accounting for this transaction. Management judgmentally stratified the loan portfolio
based on similar risk characteristics and engaged an independent third party to estimate collateral values,
calculate expected cash flows, and derive loss factors to measure fair values for loans. Foreclosed assets were
valued based upon pending sales contracts or appraised values, adjusted for current market conditions.
Management used quoted or current market prices to determine the fair value of investment securities, short term
borrowings and long term obligations that were assumed in this transaction.



BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

banescousa.com

Bargain Purchase and Intangible Assets

Bargain purchase represents the excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over cost of the acquired assets.
Intangible assets consist primarily of core deposit intangibles, which represent the excess of the fair value of
deposits acquired over their carrying values and are amortized over the period in which the Bank expects to
derive benefit from the deposits. Intangible assets other than goodwill, which are determined to have finite lives,
are amortized over the period benefited, generally five to fifteen years and are periodically reviewed for
reasonableness. The recoverability of other intangibles is evaluated if events or circumstances indicate possible
impairment. Intangible assets amounted to $127,718 and $221,388, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014,
respectively, and are included in prepaid expenses and other assets on the accompanying balance sheets.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Bank considers cash and cash equivalents with a maturity of three months or less from their original
purchase date to be cash equivalents. Cash equivalents include cash and due from banks and interest bearing
deposits in cther financial institutions.

Restricted Cash

Cash and cash equivalents include funds that are restricted as to withdrawal or use under the terms of certain
contractual agreements. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank’s restricted cash amounted to $892,326 and is held
as collateral for standby letters of credit with its longest maturity being in March 2016. There was no restricted
cash as December 31, 2014.

Investment Securities

Investment securities consist of U.S. government agencies issued securities, U.S. government agencies
sponsored, collateralized mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds, and municipal
securities. Certain debt securities that management has the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are
classified as "held-to-maturity” and recorded at amortized cost. Trading securities are recorded at fair value with
changes in fair value included in earnings. Securities not classified as held-to-maturity or trading, including equity
securities with readily determinable fair values, are classified as “available for sale” and recorded at fair value,
with unrealized gains and losses excluded from earnings and reported in other comprehensive (loss) income. As
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank’s investment securities were all classified as available for sale, except
for one U.8. government sponsored mortgage backed security which was classified as held to maturity.

Purchase premiums and discounts are recognized in interest income using the interest method over the terms of
the securities. Declines in the fair value of held-to-maturity and available for sale securities below their cost that
are deemed to be other-than-temporary are reflected in eamings as realized losses. In determining whether
other-than-temporary impairment exists, management considers many factors, including (1) the length of time
and the extent to which the fair value has been less than cost, (2) the financial condition and near-term prospects
of the issuer, and (3) the intent and ability of the Bank to retain its investments in the issuer for a period of time
sufficient to allow for any anticipated recovery in fair value. Gains and losses on the sale of securities are
recorded on the trade date and are determined using the specific identification method.

Federal Home Loan Bank Stock

Federal Home Loan Bank (‘FHLB”) stock is a restricted asset, carried at cost, and evaluated for impairment. As
of December 31, 2015 and 2014, FHLB stock amounted to $2,103,500 and $2,988,300, respectively.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Loans

The Bank’s accounting methods for loans differ depending on whether the loans are originated or purchased, and
for purchased loans, whether the loans were acquired as a result of a business combination or purchased
individually or as a portfolio.

Legacy Loans and Leases:

Loans are reported at their principal outstanding balance net of deferred loan fees or costs, unearned income and
the allowance for loan losses. Loan origination and commitment fees and the costs associated with the
origination of loans are deferred and amortized using the interest method over the life of the related loan. Interest
income is generally recognized when income is earned using the simple interest or effective yield method.

In many lending transactions, collateral is obtained to provide an additional measure of security. Generally, the
cash flow and earnings power of the borrower represent the primary source of repayment and collateral is
considered as an additional safeguard on an acceptable credit risk. The need for collateral is determined on a
case by case basis after considering the current and prospective creditworthiness of the borrower, terms of the
lending transaction and economic conditions.

The Bank classifies all loans and leases past due when the payment of principal and interest, based upon
contractual terms, is not made as of its due date. Charge offs on commercial loans are recorded when available
information confirms the loan is not fully collectible and the loss is reasonably quantifiable. Consumer loans are
subject to mandatory charge off at a specified delinquency date consistent with regulatory guidelines.

Purchased Loans:

Loans acquired in a business combination are recorded at their fair value at the acquisition date. Credit discounts
are included in the determination of fair value; therefore, an allowance for loan losses is not recorded at the
acquisition date.

In determining the fair value of purchased loans at acquisition date, and in subsequent accounting, the Bank
aggregates purchased loans into pools of lcans with common characteristics. The Bank reviews each loan at
acquisition to determine if it should be accounted for as a loan that has experienced credit deterioration and is
probable that at acquisition, the Bank will not be able to collect all the contractual principal and interest due from
the borrower. The Bank considers substantially all loans acquired via FDIC assisted transactions to meet the
criteria of loans acquired with evidence of impairment, unless the loan type is specifically excluded from the
scope of ASC 310-30, Loans and Debt Securities Acquired with Deteriorated Credit Quality, such as loans with
active revolver features or because management has minimal doubt of the collection of the loan. This policy is
based on the following general themes surrounding an FDIC assisted transaction:

1)There is a high degree of uncertainty surrounding the quality of underwriting of the failed institutions that made
the original loan,

2) Management of the Bank has limited due diligence time prior to deal execution, and

3) In many instances, loans were made in geographical areas that have experienced significant economic
hardships as well as significant deterioration in collateral values. Loans acquired with evidence of impairment
are classified as Purchased Credit Impaired (*PCI”) loans.

The Bank makes an estimate of the loans’ contractual principal and contractual interest payments as well as the
total cash flows it expects to collect from the pools of loans, which includes undiscounted expected principal and
interest.



BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

banescousa.com

Loans (continued)

Purchased Loans: (continued)

The excess of contractual amounts over the total cash flows expected to be collected from the loans is referred to
as non-accretable difference, which is not accreted into income. The excess of the expected undiscounted cash
flows over the fair value of the loans is referred to as accretable discount. Accretable discount is recognized as
interest income on a level-yield basis over the life of the loans. Management has not included prepayment
assumptions in its modeling of contractual or expected cash flows. The Bank continues to estimate cash flows
expected to be collected over the life of the loans. Subsequent increases in total cash flows expected to be
collected are recognized as an adjustment to the accretable yield with the amount of periodic accretion adjusted
over the remaining life of the loans. Subsequent decreases in cash flows expected to be collected over the life of
the loans are recognized as impairment in the current period through allowance for loan losses. Gain on
resolution of acquired assets represents the net settlement amount between the proceeds received and the
carrying amount of the loans.

Non-accrual Loans, Impaired Loans and Restructured Loans:

The Bank generally places loans on nonaccrual status when the full and timely collection of interest or principal
becomes uncertain, part of the principal balance has been charged off, the loan has been restructured but is not
meeting the terms of the restructure, or the loan reaches 90 days past due. All interest accrued but not collected
for loans that are placed on non-accrual status or loans that are charged off is reversed against interest income.
The interest on these loans is accounted for on the cash-basis or cost-recovery method, until qualifying to return
to accrual status. Loans are returned to accrual status when all the principal and interest amounts contractually
due are brought current and future payments are reasonably assured.

The Bank has determined that the entire balance of a loan is contractually delinquent for all classes if the
minimum payment is not received by the specified due date on the borrower's statement. Interest and fees
continue to accrue on past due loans until the date the loan goes into non-accrual status, if applicable.

A loan is considered impaired when, based on current information and events, it is probable that the Bank will be
unable to collect the scheduled payments of principal or interest when due according to the contractual terms of
the loan agreement. Factors considered by management in determining impairment include payment status,
collateral value, and the probability of collecting scheduled principal and interest payments when due. Loans that
experience insignificant payment delays and payment shortfalls generally are not classified as impaired.
Management determines the significance of payment delays and payment shortfalls on a case-by-case basis,
taking into consideration all of the circumstances surrounding the loan and the borrower, including the length of
the delay, the reasons for the delay, the borrower's prior payment record, and the amount of the shortfall in
relation to the principal and interest owed. Impairment is measured on a loan by loan basis by either the present
value of expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, the loan’s obtainable market
price, or the fair value of the collateral less selling costs, if the loan is collateral dependent. If management
determines that the value of the impaired loan is less than the recorded investment in the loan (outstanding
principal balance, net of previous charge-offs, and net of deferred loan fees or cost), impairment is recognized
through an allowance estimate or a charge-off to the allowance.

When the ultimate collectability of the total principal of an impaired loan is doubtful and the loan is on nonaccrual
status, all payments are applied to principal, under the cost recovery method. When the ultimate collectability of
the total principal of an impaired loan is not in doubt and the loan is on nonaccrual status, contractual interest is
credited to interest income when received, under the cash basis method.

[44
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Loans (continued)

Non-accrual Loans, Impaired Loans and Restructured Loans: (continued)

In situations where, due to a borrower’s financial difficulties, management grants a concession for other than an
insignificant period of time to the borrower that would not otherwise be granted, the loan is classified as a
troubled debt restructuring (“TDR”). Management attempts to identify borrowers in financial difficulty early and
work with them to modify terms before their loan reaches nonaccrual status. However, due to the complexity of
modifying terms, many loans are modified after nonaccrual status has been established. The modified terms may
include rate reductions, payment forbearance, principal forbearance, principal forgiveness and other actions
intended to minimize the economic loss to the Bank and avoid foreclosure of the collateral. In cases where the
borrowers are granted new terms that provide for a reduction of either interest or principal, management
measures the impairment on the restructuring as detailed above for impaired loans.

In addition to the allowance for the pooled portfolios, management has developed a separate allowance for loans
that are identified as impaired through a TDR and is included in the Bank’'s allowance for loan losses. These
loans are excluded from pooled loss forecast and a separate reserve is provided under the accounting guidance
for loan impairment. Residential loans whose terms have been modified in a TDR are also individually analyzed
for estimated impairment.

Certain TDRs are classified as nonperforming at the time of restructure and may only be returned to performing
status after considering the borrower's sustained repayment performance for a reasonable period, generally six
months.

Allowance for Loan Losses (“ALL")

The allowance for loan losses reflects management’s judgment of probable loan losses inherent in the portfolio at
the balance sheet date. Management uses a disciplined process and methodology to establish the allowance for
losses each quarter. To determine the total allowance for loan losses, the Bank estimates the reserves needed
for each segment of the portfolio, including loans analyzed individually and loans analyzed on a pooled basis.

In determining the balance of the allowance account, loans are pooled by portfolio segment and management
evaluates the allowance for loan losses on each segment and as a whole on a regular basis to maintain the
allowance at an adequate level based on factors which, in management’s judgment, deserve current recognition
in estimating loan losses. Such factors include changes in prevailing economic conditions, historical experience,
changes in the character and size of the loan portfolio and the overall credit worthiness of the borrowers.

The following is how management determines the balance of the general component for the allowance for loan
losses account for each segment of the loans:

Land and Land Development; Real Estate Construction; Commercial Real Estate; Commercial and Industrial
Loans; Residential Real Estate, and Other Loans.

All loans are grouped by collateral type with similar risk characteristics and a historical charge-off rate for the last
twelve quarters is used. In 2014 the historical charge-off rate was for eight quarters. A weighted average loss
factor is calculated and applied to the loan balance for each group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Allowance for Loan Losses (“ALL”) (continued)

Qualitative factors are applied to historical loss rate based on management’'s experience. Due to the static nature
of the portfolio, the nine factors used are:

Lending Policies and Procedures

International, National, Regional, and Local Economic Conditions
Nature or Volume of the Portfolio and Terms of Loans

Experience, Ability, and Depth of Lending and Credit Management
Levels and trends in delinquencies, non-accruals, and Risk Rating
Quality of Loan Review System

Value of Underlying Collateral

Existences and Effect of Credit Concentrations

Other External Consequences

The adjusted loss rates are applied to the outstanding balances of each loan grouping.

Changes in these factors could result in material adjustments to the allowance for loan losses and provision for
loan losses. The losses the Bank may ultimately incur could differ materially from the amounts assumed in
arriving at the allowance for loan losses.

The Bank provides for loan losses through a provision for loan losses charged to operations. When management
believes that a loan balance is uncollectible, the loan balance is charged against the allowance for loan losses.
Subsequent recoveries, if any, are credited to the allowance for loan losses.

In addition to the allowance for loan losses, the Bank also estimates probable losses related to unfunded lending
commitments, such as letters of credit, financial guarantees and unfunded loan commitments. Unfunded lending
commitments are subject to individual reviews and the Bank applies the same adjusted loss rates as those
applied to similar loan pools based on risk classification in calculating the overall allowance for loan losses.
These risk classifications, in conjunction with an analysis of historical loss experience, current economic
conditions, performance trends within specific portfolio segments, and any other pertinent information, result in
the estimation of the reserve for unfunded lending commitments. Provision for credit losses related to the loan
portfolio and unfunded lending commitments are reported in the statements of operations. At December 31, 2015
and 2014, the allowance for unfunded lending commitments amounts to $668,869 and $440,603 respectively,
and is included in other liabilities, on the accompanying balance sheets.

Also, various regulatory agencies, as an integral part of their examination process, periodically review the Bank’s
allowance for loan losses. Such agencies may require the Bank to recognize additions to the allowance for loan
losses based on their judgments of information available to them at the time of their examination.

For PCI loans, a valuation allowance is established when it is probable that the Bank will be unable to collect all
the cash flows expected at acquisition plus additional cash flows expected to be collected arising from changes in
estimates after acquisition. A specific allowance is established when subsequent evaluations of expected cash
flows from PCI loans reflect a decrease in those estimates. The Bank reassesses cash flows on its loan portfolio
based on current circumstances and events. Occasionally, external factors non-controllable by the Bank could
result in cash flows not performing in line with expectations. If a pool of loans has paid in excess of its carrying
value and management considers that the information on the pool is such that it can no longer estimate an
expectation of cash flows in a manner that is reliable, the Bank discontinues the accrual of income on that
portfolio and recognizes incocme on a cash basis based on the payments of interest for the pool. A gain is
recognized for the amount of excess cash collected on the pool when all loans in the pool have been disposed of.

The Bank uses assumptions and methodologies that are relevant to estimating the level of impairment and
probable losses in the loan portfolio. To the extent that the data supporting such assumptions has limitations,
management's judgment and experience play a key role in recording the allowance estimates. Additions to the
allowance for loan losses are made by provisions charged to earnings. Furthermore, an improvement in the
expected cash flows related to PCI loans would result in a reduction of the required specific allowance with a
corresponding credit to the provision.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Allowance for Loan Losses (“ALL") (continued)

Risk grading:

The grading analysis estimates the capability of the borrower to repay the contractual obligation of the loan
agreement as scheduled or at all. The Bank’s internal credit risk grading system is based on experiences with
similarly graded loans. Credit risk grades for classified loans are refreshed each quarter, and pass grades are
done annually.

The Bank’s internally assigned grades are as follows:

Pass — Loans indicate different levels of satisfactory financial condition and performance.

Special Mention — Loans are exhibiting potential weaknesses deserving management’s close attention.
Substandard — Loans are exhibiting well-defined weaknesses that jeopardize repayment of the debt.
Doubtful — Loans where the possibility of loss is extremely high.

Loss — Loans are considered uncollectible.

Interest Income
Interest income is recognized as earned, based upen the principal amount outstanding, on an accrual basis.

Property and Equipment, Net

Property and equipment are carried at cost, less accumulated depreciation and amortization. Depreciation is
computed on the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the assets. Leasehold improvements are
amortized over the remaining term of the applicable leases or their useful lives, whichever is shorter. Estimated
useful lives of these assets are as follows:

Computer equipment and software 3to 5 years
Furniture and equipment 31to 7 years
Leasehold improvements Shorter of life or term of lease

Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred; improvements and betterments are capitalized.
When items are retired or are otherwise disposed of, the related costs and accumulated depreciation and
amortization are removed from the accounts and any resulting gains or losses are credited or charged to income.

Foreclosed Assets

Assets acquired through orin lieu of loan foreclosure are held for sale and are initially recorded at fair value less
estimated costs to sell at the date of foreclosure, establishing a new cost basis. Subseqguent to foreclosure,
valuations are periodically performed by management, and the assets are carried at the lower of carrying amount
or fair value less cost to sell. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, foreclosed assets amounted to $2,796,500 and
$2,850,721, respectively.

Securities Sold Under Agreements to Repurchase

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase are classified as secured borrowings and are reflected at the
amount of cash in connection with the transaction. The Bank may be required to provide additional collateral
based on the fair value of the underlying securities (NOTE 8).

Income Taxes

Income taxes are accounted for under the asset and liability method. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are
recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the financial statement carrying
amounts of existing assets and liabilities and their respective tax basis and operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured using enacted tax rates expected to apply to
taxable income in the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The
effect on deferred tax assets and liabilities of a change in tax rates is recognized in income in the period that
includes the enactment date.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
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Income Taxes {continued)

The Bank recognizes positions taken or expected to be taken in a tax return in accordance with existing
accounting guidance on income taxes which prescribes a recognition threshold and measurement process.
Interest and penalties on tax liabilities, if any, would be recorded in interest expense and other noninterest
expense, respectively.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

The Bank’s long-lived assets, such as property and equipment, are reviewed for impairment whenever events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of an asset may not be recoverable. Recoverability of
assets to be held and used is measured by a comparison of the carrying amount of an asset to estimated
undiscounted future cash flows expected to be generated by the asset. If the carrying amount of an asset
exceeds its estimated future cash flows, an impairment charge is recognized for the amount by which the carrying
amount of the asset exceeds the fair value of the asset. Assets to be disposed of would be separately presented
in the balance sheet and reported at the lower of the carrying amount or fair value less costs to sell, and are no
longer depreciated. The assets and liabilities of a disposal group classified as held for sale would be presented
separately in the appropriate asset and liability sections of the balance sheet. The Bank did not recognize an
impairment charge during the years ended December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Advertising Costs

Advertising Costs are expenses as incurred. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, advertising costs amounted to
$473,962 and $351,500, respectively.

Interest Rate Risk

The Bank’s performance is dependent to a large extent on its net interest income, which is the difference
between interest income on interest-earning assets and interest expense on interest-bearing liabilities. The Bank,
like most financial institutions, is affected by changes in general interest rate levels and by other economic factors
beyond its control. Interest rate risk arises from mismatches between the dollar amount of repricing or maturing
assets and liabilities (the interest rate sensitivity gap). More liabilities repricing or maturing than assets over a
given time frame is considered liability-sensitive, or a negative gap. An asset-sensitive position will generally
enhance earnings in a rising interest rate environment and will negatively impact eamings in a falling interest rate
environment, while a liability-sensitive position will generally enhance earnings in a falling interest rate
environment and negatively impact earnings in a rising interest rate environment. Fluctuations in interest rates
are not predictable or controllable. The Bank has implemented asset and liability management strategies to
mitigate the impact to net interest income resulting from changes in market interest rates.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Credit risk represents the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized at the reporting date if
counterparties failed completely to perform as contracted and any collateral or security proved to be of no value.
Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off-balance sheet) arising from financial instruments exist in relation
to certain groups of customers. A group concentration arises when a number of counterparties have similar
economic characteristics that would cause their ahility to meet contractual cbligations to be similarly affected by
changes in economic or other conditions. The Bank does not have a significant exposure to any individual
customer or counterparty.

Maost of the Bank's business activity is with customers located within its primary market area, which includes
Miami-Dade and Broward Counties, Florida. The Bank’s loan portfolio is concentrated largely in real estate and
commercial loans in South Florida. Circumstances, which negatively impact the South Florida real estate industry
or the South Florida economy, in general, could adversely impact the Bank’s loan portfolio.

At various times during the year, the Bank has maintained deposits with other financial institutions in excess of
amounts received. The exposure to the Bank from these transactions is solely dependent upon daily balances
and the financial strength of the respective institution.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Comprehensive Income (Loss)

Comprehensive income ({loss) consists of net income and other comprehensive income (loss). Other
comprehensive income (loss) includes unrealized gains on securities available for sale, and unrealized losses
related to factors other than credit on debt securities.

Fair Value Measurement

Fair values of financial instruments are estimated using relevant market information and other assumptions, as
more fully disclosed in NOTE 16. Fair value estimates involve uncertainties and matters of significant judgment.
Changes in assumptions or in market conditions could significantly affect the estimates.

Subsequent Events

The Bank has evaluated subsequent events through April 11, 2016 which is the date the financial statements
were available to be issued.

Recent Accounting Prenouncements

Troubled Debt Restructurings by Creditors - Reclassification of Residential Real Estate Collateralized Consumer
Mortgage Loans upon Foreclosure

In January 2014, the Financial Accounting Standard Board ("FASB”) issued an accounting standard update which
intends to clarify when a creditor should be considered to have received physical possession of residential real
estate property collateralizing a consumer mortgage loan such that the loan should be derecognized and the
related real estate recognized. The update also requires additional disclosures and is to be applied either
prospectively or with a modified retrospective method. The update is effective for annual periods beginning after
December 15, 2014 and interim periods within annual periods beginning after December 15, 2015. The adoption
of this accounting standard update did not have a material impact on the Bank's financial statements.

Fair Value Measurement

In May 2015, the FASB issued an accounting standard update that removes the requirement to include
investments in the fair value hierarchy for which fair value is measured at net asset value using the practical
expedient. The update also changes certain disclosure requirements. The update is effective retrospectively for
fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2016 and interim periods within those fiscal years. Early application is
permitted. The Bank is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its financial statements.

Revenue From Contracts With Customers

In May 2014, the FASB issued an accounting standard update which affects the revenue recognition of entities
that enter into either (1) certain contracts to transfer goods or services to customers or (2) certain contracts for
the transfer of nonfinancial assets. The update indicates an entity should recognize revenue in an amount that
reflects the consideration the entity expects to be entitled to in exchange for the goods or services transferred by
the entity. The update is to be applied to the beginning of the year of implementation or retrospectively and is
effective for annual periods beginning after December 15, 2018 and in interim periods in annual periods
beginning after December 15, 2019. Early application is permitted, but no earlier than annual reporting periods
beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on
its financial statements.

Recognition and Measurement of Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities

In January 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standard update which seeks to enhance the recognition,
measurement, presentation and disclosure requirements of financial instruments. The update is effective for fiscal
years beginning after December 15, 2018 and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2019 with early adoption permitted for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017, including interim periods
within those fiscal years. The Bank is currently evaluating the effect the update will have on its financial
statements.
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DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Recent Accounting Pronouncements {continued)

Lease Accounting

In February 2016, the FASB issued an accounting standard update which amends existing lease guidance. The
update requires lessees to recognize a right-of-use asset and related lease liability for many operating leases
now currently off-balance sheet under current US GAAP. The Bank is currently evaluating the effect the update
will have on its financial statements but expects upon adoption that the update will have a material effect on the
Bank's financial condition due to the recognition of a right-of-use asset and related lease liability. The Bank does
not anticipate the update having a material effect on the Bank's results of operations or cash flows, though such
an effect is possible. The update is effective using a modified retrospective approach for fiscal years beginning
after December 15, 2019, and for interim periods within fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2020, with

early application permitted.

Reclassification

Certain amounts in the 2014 financial statements have been reclassified to conform to the 2015 presentation.

INVESTMENT SECURITIES

banescousa.com

Available for Sale

The amortized cost, gross unrealized holding gains, gross unrealized helding losses, and fair value of investment
securities available for sale, by major security, as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding Fair
Gains Losses Value

Amortized
Cost

Securties available for sale:

U.S8. govemment agencies issued securities $ 36,040,284
U.S. govemment agencies sponsored 9,000,000
Collateralized mortgage obligations 4,163,465
Mortgage-backed securities 80,347,449
Municipals 23,094,813
Corporate bonds 38,023,337

3 42,419 3 (468,912) $ 38,613,791

- (224,151) 8,775,849
- (141,000) 4,022,465
- (1,681,205) 78,666,244
236,815 (307,734) 23,023,804
- (2,180,426) 35,842,911

$ 193,669,348

$ 279,24 $  (5,003,428) $ 188,945,154

December 31, 2014

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Holding Holding Fair
Gains Losses Value

Amortized
Cost

Securities available for sale:

U.S. govemment agencies issued securities $ 35,317,508
U.S. govemment agencies sponsored 13,852,145
Collateralized mortgage obligations 5,117,502
Mortgage-backed securities 117,505,391
Municipals 28,818,239
Corporate bonds 27,923,724

$ 60,792 $ (451,516) $ 34,926,784

440 (249,340) 13,703,245

- (151,508) 4,965,994
61,685 (1,286,494) 116,280,582
266,072 (353,682) 28,730,620
58,253 (748,843) 27,233,134

$ 228,634,509

$ 447,242 $  (3,241,383) $ 225,840,368
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Available for Sale (continued)

Investment securities pledged to secure borrowings under securities sold under agreements to repurchase had a
fair value of approximately $2,498, 000 and $7,940,000 at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

Proceeds from the sales of investment securities available for sale for the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014 amounted to $65,801,135 and $54,340,939, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2015 and
2014, there were net gains of $337,908 and $148,319, respectively.

Expected maturities of securities available for sale will differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have
the right to call or repay obligations with or without call or repayment penalties. The amortized cost and fair value
of securities available for sale by contractual maturity are as follows, as of December 31:

Due after one year through five years
Due after five years through ten yvears
Due after ten years

2016

Securities Available for Sale

Amortized Fair
Cost Value

$ 16,096,174 $ 15,727,095
37,800,215 35,747,293
139,772,959 137,470,766

$ 193,669,348 $ 188,945,154

Information pertaining to securities with gross unrealized holding losses, aggregated by investment category and
length of time that individual securities have been in a continuous loss position at December 31 follows:

Decerrber 31, 2015
U.S. government agencies issued securities
U.5. government agencies sponsored

Collateralized mortgage obligations
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipals

Corporate bonds

December 31, 2014
U.5. government agencies issued securities
U.S. government agencies sponsored

Collateralized mortgage obligations
Mortgage-backed securities
Municipals

Corporate bonds

Leszthan Twelve
Twelve Maonths Wanths or Mare Tatal
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Holding Fair Holding Fair Holding

Value Losses Value Losses Value Losses
14,680,179 $ (127 B33) $ 18,448,022 $ (341.279) $ 33,138,201 % (468.812)
6,831,003 (168,007) 1,943,656 (56,144) 8,775,840 (224 151)
5 - 4,022,485 (141,000) 4,022,485 (141,000}
42,303,080 (620,098) 36,341,431 (1,081,108) 78,844,520 (1,681,205)
4,237,934 (102,581) 3,923,698 (205,143 7,761,832 (307.734)
20,808,674 (1,244 ,806) 6,034,336 (835 620) 35.842.910 (2,180 426)
97,871,769 $  (2,263,133) $ 70,314,808 $ (2,740,295) $ 168,186,577 $ (5,003,428)

Lessthan Twelve
Twelve Months Months or More Total
Gross Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized Unrealized

Fair Holding Fair Holding Fair Holding

Malue Losses Value Losses Value Losses
24 298,025 $ (172,192) $ 6,210,537 $ (279,324) $ 30,508,562 $ (451 518)
- - 8,750,660 (248,340) 8,750,660 (248 340}
- - 4,965,994 (151,508) 4,965,994 (161,508)
19,538,956 (119,018) 83,861,607 (1,167,476) 103,400,653 (1,286 494)
891,783 (13,B68) 11,088,934 (340.014) 11.981.727 (353 B62)
0,570,466 (340,298) 11,780,226 (408,544) 21,358,602 (748.843)
54,306,240 $ (645.177) $ 126,659,248 $ (2.596,206) $ 180,965,488 $ (3,241,383)
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INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)
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Available for Sale (continued)

The Bank is proactive in determining what possible negative effects could impact their investment portfolio. The
Bank performs assessments to determine whether there have been any events or economic circumstances to
indicate that a security on which there is an unrealized loss is impaired on an other-than-temporary basis.
Management considers many factors in their analysis including the (1) severity and duration of the impairment,
(2) the specific credit rating of the security, (3) the intent and ability to hold these securities for a period of time
until the value of the security recovers, (4) whether the current market is considered an inactive market where
most sales are considered distressed sales or disorderly transactions, and most importantly (5) management
estimates the portion of loss attributable to credit using a discounted cash flow model. The Bank estimates the
expected cash flows of the underlying collateral using interest rate and prepayment risk models that incorporate
management's best estimate of current key assumptions, such as default rates, loss severity and prepayment
rates. Based on the expected cash flows derived from the model, the Bank expects to recover the remaining
unrealized losses on the securities.

As of December 31, 2015, the Bank had $1,681,205 respectively, in unrealized losses relating to its mortgage-
backed securities. Recent changes in interest rates and central bank activity in financial markets have caused
changes in the value of mortgage backed securities to fluctuate unsteadily. The contractual cash flows of these
securities are from U.S. government sponsored agencies. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank does not consider
those investments to be other-than-temporarily impaired because the Bank does not intend to sell the securities
before recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, and it is more likely than not that the Bank
will not be required to sell the securities.

At December 31, 2015, the Bank had unrealized losses on U.S. government agencies issued securities, U.S.
government agencies sponsored and collateralized mortgage obligations; totaling $864,063, respectively. The
losses relate principally to interest rate changes, credit spread widening and reduced liquidity in applicable
markets. However, without recovery in the near term such that liquidity returns to the applicable markets and
spreads return to levels that reflect underlying credit characteristics, other-than-temporary impairments may
occur in future periods. The contractual cash flows of these securities are guaranteed by an agency of the U.S.
government. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank does not consider those investments to be otherthan-
temporarily impaired because the Bank does not intend to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized
cost basis, which may be maturity, and it is more likely than not that the Bank will not be required to sell the
securities.

At December 31, 2015, the Bank had an unrealized loss on corporate bonds totaling $2,180,426. As of December
31, 2015, the Bank does not consider the corporate bonds to be other-than-temporarily impaired because the
decline in market value is mainly attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, the Bank does not
intend to sell the securities hefore recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, and it is more
likely than not that the Bank will not be required to sell the securities.

As of December 31, 2015, unrealized losses for corporate bonds in an unrealized loss position for more than
twelve months amounted to $935,620. These losses are primarily comprised of the unrealized loss related to a
corporate bond from Petrobras that has an unrealized loss of $590,202. As of December 31, 2015, the Bank
calculated the present value of future cash flows, which exceeded the current book value; therefore, the Bank
does not consider the bond to be other-than-temporarily impaired. Additionally, the Bank does not intend to sell
the security before recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, and it is more likely than not
that the Bank will not be required to sell the security. Furthermore, the bank does not consider the bond to have
a credit impairment based on the 60.4% capital ownership of Petrobras by the Brazilian government and Brazilian
government controlled banks as of December 2015. Moreover, Brazil's central bank, Banco Central Do Brazil
maintains $368,739 million, as of December 2015 in currency reserves, which act as a guarantor of Brazil's
external debt. In addition, financial markets have become highly correlated to the price of cil. This clearly
indicates the price of the Petrobras bond is largely influenced by the oil markets and less on the fundamentals of
the company.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

INVESTMENT SECURITIES (CONTINUED)

Available for Sale (continued)

At December 31, 2015, the Bank had an unrealized loss on municipal bonds totaling $307,734, respectively. As
of December 31, 2015, the Bank does not consider the municipal bonds to be other-than-temporarily impaired
because the decline in market value is attributable to changes in interest rates and not credit quality, the Bank
does not intend to sell the securities before recovery of their amortized cost basis, which may be maturity, and it

is more likely than not that the Bank will not be required to sell the securities.

Held to Maturity

December 31, 2015

Gross Gross
Unrealized Unrealized
Amortized Holding Holding Fair
Cost Gains Losses Value
U.8. government sponsored mortgage-backed securities 3 1,233,050 $ - $ (21,724) 3 1,211,326
$ 1,233,050 $ - $ (21,724) $ 1,211,326
At December 31, 2014, there were no held to maturity securities.
LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES
The following is a summary of loans outstanding as of December 31:
(1) Purchase Non-Credit Impaired Loans ("PNCI); (2) Purchased Credit Impaired Loans (*PCI").
2015 2014
Legacy Loans PNCI (1) Total Loans PCI 2) Grand Total
Land and land development $ 3,028490 $ B $ 3,028,490 $ = $ 3,028,490 $ 3,444 668
Real estate construction 76,678,957 - 76,678,957 - 76,678,957 79,486,888
Residential real estate 100,532,004 1,379,754 101,911,758 7,205,373 109,117,131 108,799,572
Commercial real estate 323,851,017 258,205 324,109,222 5,637,443 329,746,665 274,149 451
Commercial and Industrial 178,144 302 84,873 178,229,175 - 178,229,175 185,435 177
Consumer 344,322 - 344,322 - 344,322 694,721
682,579,092 1,722,832 684,301,924 12,842,816 697,144,740 652,010477
Less:
Allowance for loan and lease losses (7,909,675) - (7,909,675) (46,062) (7,955,737) (7,244 562)
Deferred loan fees/unamorized discount (1,522,228) - (1,5622,228) - (1,522,228) (1,183,440)
Net Loans $ 673,147,189 $ 1,722,832 $ 674,870,021 $12,796,754 $ 687,666,775 $ 643,582,475
A reconciliation of the recorded investment in loans, is as follows:
2015 2014
Gross loans $ 697,144,740 $ 652,010,477
Plus: Accured interest receivable 1,489, 246 1,346,334
Less: Unearned income 1,522,228 1,183,440
Recorded investments in loans $ 697,121,758 $652,173,371

The Bank has pledged approximately $182,877,000 and $140,549,000 of mortgage loans as collateral for
advances from the Federal Home Loan Bank of Atlanta as of December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.
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Management has an established methodology to determine the adequacy of the allowance for loan losses that
assesses the risks and losses inherent in the loan portfolio. For purposes of determining the allowance for loan
losses, the Bank has segmented the loans in the portfolio by product type Loans are segmented into the
following pools: land and land development, real estate construction, residential real estate, commercial real

estate, commercial and industrial, consumer and other.

The total allowance reflects management’s estimate of loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio at the balance
sheet date. The Bank considers the allowance for loan losses of $7,955,737 and $7,244,562 adequate to cover

the loan losses inherent in the loan portfolio at December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.

The following tables summarize the Bank's loans acquired during 2012, the outstanding balance and related

carrying amount as of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Real Estate
1-4 single family res idential
Commercial real estate
Total real estate
Other Loans
Cash collateral loans
Consumer and other
Total other loans
Total PCl loans

Real Estate
1-4 single family residential
Commercial real estate
Total real estate
Other Loans
Cash collateral loans
Consumer and other
Total other loans
Total PCl loans

The following table summarizes the Bank’s amount of accretable yield discount at the beginning and end of the
period, reconciled for additions, accretion, disposals of loans, and reclassifications to or from “non-accretable

December 31, 2015

PCI PNCI Total Portfolio

Outstanding Carrying Outstanding Carrying Outstanding Carrying
Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount
$ 10,593,684 $ 7,205,373 $ 1475656 § 1,379,754 $ 12,069,340 $ 6,585,127
5,424,075 5,637,443 258,205 258,205 5,682,280 5,895,648
16,017,759 12,842,816 1,733,661 1,637,959 17,751,620 14,430,775

- - 84,673 84,373 84,873 84,873

- - 34,873 84,373 $4.873 84,573

$ 16,017,759 $ 12,342,816 $ 1,818,734 $ 1,722,832 $ 17,836,493 $14,565,648

December 31, 2014
PCI PNCI Total Portfolio

Qutstanding Carrying Qutstanding Carrying Qutstanding Carrying
Balance Amount Balance Amount Balance Amount
$ 14,056,556 3 11,655,442 3 1,672,852 3 1,514,904 3 15,729,408 $13,170,248
7,281,830 6,180,204 534,693 533,283 7,816,523 6,713 487
21,338,386 17,835 646 2207545 2,048,187 23,545,931 10,883,833

5 E 84,673 84,873 84,873 84,873

1,381 - = - 1,381 -

1,391 - 84,873 84,873 86,2684 84,873

$ 21,339,777 $ 17,835,646 $ 2292418 3 2,133,060 $ 23,632,195 $19,968 708

difference” as of December 31, 2015:

Accretable discount on PCl loans at December 31, 2014 $

Accretable discount arising from acquisition of PCl loans -

Accretion during the period

Reclassification from non-accretable difference

Loan resolution

Balance as of December 31, 2015

PCl PNCI Total
10,754,074 $ 159,359 § 10,913 433
(1,300,315) (16,170) (1,316,485)

2,360,359 . 2,360,359
(2,697,689) (47,286) (2,744,975)
$ 9,116,429 $ 95903 $ 9,212,332
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table summarizes the allowance for loan losses associated with PCI loans as of as of December

31, 2015

Beginning Balance

Provision for loan losses

Charge-offs

Allowance for PCI loans at December 31, 2015

$

$

42,916
3146

46,062

Changes in the allowance for loan losses and the outstanding balances in Legacy and PNCI loans are follows for:

For the Year Ended December 31, 2015

Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Recoveries

Chargeoffs

Ending Balance

Ending balance: individually evaluated
forimpairment

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality

Loans:
Ending balance

Ending balance: individually evaluated
forimpairment

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality

For the Year Ended December 31, 2014

Allowance for Loan Losses:
Balance at beginning of year
Provision for loan losses
Recoveries

Chargeoffs

Ending Balance

Ending balance: indivdually evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality

Loans:
Ending balance

Ending balance: indivdually evaluated
for impairment

Ending balance: collectively evaluated
forimpairment

Ending balance: loans acquired with
deteriorated credit quality

Land and Land Real Estate Residential Commercial Real  Commercial and
Development Construction Real Estate Estate Industrial Consumer Unallocated Total
$ 178457 $ 1,356,000 $ - $ 3316106 $ 1902758 $ ® $ 450,237 $ 7,201,646
168,195 (425,051) 66,069 (842.577) 1484 615 - 477145 628,396
- - - BEB, 102 - - 658,102
- - (750) - (777,719) - - (778,469)
$ 344,652 $ 931,039 $ 65,319 $ 3,031,631 $ 2,609,652 $ - $ 927,382 $ 7,909,675
$ 331,923 5 - 5 4,150 5 63,860 § 739,056 $ = $ 22 3 1,138,989
$ 12,729 3 931,039 % 61,169 % 2967771 $ 187058 % - % 927,382 % 6,770,686
] - $ c $ = $ o $ g $ = $ 46,062 $ 46,062
$ 3,028,490 $ 76,678,957 $101,911,758 $ 324,109,222 $ 178,229,175 $ 344,322 $ - $ 684,301,924
$ 1,828,898 3 231,115 % 352,424 % 5,263,246 $ 5,041,189 % 4,424 % - $ 13,261,276
G 1,189,592 $ 76,447,842 $101,028,334 $ 315,845,576 $ 173,185,008 5 339,888 5 = $ 871,040,845
$ i $ & $ 7,205,373 $ 5,637,443 $ & $ £ $ - $ 12,842,816
Land and Land Real Estate Residential Commercial Real  Commercial and
Development Construction Real Estate Estate Industrial Consumer Unallocated Total
$ 116,915 $ 520,911 % 157.850 % 4.387,504 $ 1428857 % 1.124 % = % 6,612,981
59,542 835,179 (157,880} (1,561,167) 716485 (1,124) 450,237 341,312
& ] - 483,769 6427 - - 486,196
= = P < (248 823) = . (248,823)
$ 176,457 $ 1,356,090 $ # $ 3,316,106 $ 1,902,756 $ £ $ 450,237 $ 7,201,646
$ 157,581 $ o $ = $ 15,332 $ 267,731 % = g = g 440,834
$ 18,596 $ 1,356,090 $ - $ 3,300,774 % 1,634 965 % - $ 450,237 % 6,760,952
$ 5 $ - $ E $ 5 $ - § = § 42,916 § 42,916
$ 3,444,668 $ 795,486,888 $ 97,144,130 $ 267,869,247 $ 185435177 $ 694,721 $ - $ 634,174,831
$ 1,815,739 3 257,524 $ 198,488 $ 6,080,822 $ 1103789 % - $ 5 % 9,458,352
$ 1,628,929 $ 79,229,384 $ 96,945,642 $ 261888425 $ 184,231388 $ 694,721 $ = $ 624,718,459
$ e $ & $ 11,655,442 $ 6,180,204 $ = $ = $ = $ 17,835,646




BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

During the year ended December 31, 2015, the provision for loan losses amounted to $831,542 and is comprised
of $828,396 for legacy and PNCI loans and $3,146 for PCI loans. During the year ended December 31, 2014, the
provision for loan losses amounted to $85,860 and is comprised of a $341,312 for legacy and PNCI loans and a
reversal of $255,452 for PCI loans.

Legacy and PNCI loan credit exposures by internally assigned grades are as follows:

December 31, 2015 Special
Land and land development and real estate construction Pass Mention Substandard Total
Land and land development $ 1114000 % 175089 & 1,738401 § 3,028,490
Real estate construction 76,447 842 - 231,115 76,678,957
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 98,966,399 1,658,465 338477 100,853,341
1-4 family second lien 990,435 - 87,982 1,068,417
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate term 233,178,686 2,352,335 1,114,492 236,645,413
Owiner occupied commercial real estate 85,848,150 - 1,617 659 87,463,809
Commercial and industrial 168,848,551 4,339,454 5,041,170 178,229,175
Consumer 339,898 - 4,424 344,322
Total loans $ 665,721,861 $ 8,425,343 $ 10,154,720 $ 684,301,924
December 31, 2014 Special
Land and land development and real estate construction Pass Mention Substandard Total
Land and land development 3 1,628,929 3 - 3 1,815,739 3 3,444 663
Real estate construction 79,229,364 - 257,524 79,486,883
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 95,043,818 - 406,793 95,450,611
1-4 family second lien 1,693,513 - - 1,693,513
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate term 233,234,092 1583468 4,323,204 244,140,762
Qwner occupled commercial real estate 22,154,714 1,673,771 - 23,828,485
Commercial and industrial 179,720,295 4,611,084 1,103,788 185,435,177
Consumer 665,994 - 28,727 694,721
Total loans $ 618,370,725 § 7,868,331 § 7935775 § 634,174,831

banescousa.com
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

Performing and nonperforming Legacy and PNCI loans based on payment activity are as follows:

December 31, 2015

Non
Land and land development and real estate construction Performing Performing Total
Land and land development 3 1,280,089 § 1,739,401 $ 3,028,480
Real estate construction 76,447 842 231,115 76,678 957
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 100,688,223 165,118 100,853,341
1-4 family second lien 980,435 67,982 1,058,417
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate term 236,645,413 - 236,645 413
Owner occupied commercial real estate 87,463,809 - 87,463 809
Commercial and industrial 173,630,196 4,598,979 178,220,175
Other Loans
Secured 344,322 - 344,322
Total loans $ 677,499,329 $ 6,802,595 $ 684,301,924
December 31, 2014
Non
Land and land development and real estate construction Performing Performing Total
Land and land development $ 3444668 $ - 3 3,444,668
Real estate construction 79,229,364 257,524 79,486,888
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 95,252,123 198,488 85,450,611
1-4 family second lien 1,683,519 - 1,693,519
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate term 243,894,293 246,469 244 140,762
Owner occupied commercial real estate 23,828,485 - 23,828 485
Commercial and industrial 184,331,389 1,103,788 185,435,177
Other Loans
o Secured 694,721 - 694,721
o
Total loans $ 632,368,562 $ 1,806,269 $ 634,174,831
E Nonperforming loans also include certain loans that have been modified in TDRs where economic concessions
2 have been granted to borrowers who have experienced financial difficulties.
0
o
o Payment activity is reviewed by management on a monthly basis to determine how loans are performing. Loans
% are considered to be nonperforming when the loan is greater than 90 days delinquent. Certain TDR’s that are
> greater than 90 days past due are considered performing, based on their adherence with their modified terms.

Nonperforming loans, non-accrual loans and 90 days or more past due loans represent 0.99% and 0.28% of total
loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. Management believes the likelihood of loss for nonperforming loans
has decreased for the current period due to improvements in the economy.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following tables includes an aging analysis of the outstanding balances of past due Legacy and PNCI
loans as of December 31, 2015 and 2014. Certain loans over 90 days or more past due with interest and
principal are still accruing.

As of December 31, 2015

Loans = 90
30-80 Days Total Past days and
Age Analysis of Past Due Loans by Loan Class Past Due Over 90 Days Due Current Total Loans Accruing

Land and land development and real estate construction

Land and land development $  1.73@401 3 - $ 1,738.401 $ 1,289,089 3 3,028,490 $ -

Real estate construction = - - 78,678,957 78,678,957 &
Residential real estate

1-4 family first lien 523,812 - 523,812 100,329,529 100,853,341 -

1-4 famnily second lien - 67,982 67,882 990,435 1,088,417 -
Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate termn - - - 236,645,413 236,645 413 -

Owner occupied commercial real estate - - - 87,463,809 87,463,809 -
Commercial and industrial 61,024 37,567 98,591 178,130,584 178,228,175 =
Other Loans

Secured - - - 344,322 344,322 -
Total loans $ 2,324,237 $ 105,549 $ 2,429,786 $ 681,872,138 $ 684,301,924 $ -
As of December 31, 2014

Loans = 80
30-90 Days Total Past day s and
Age Analysis of Past Due Loans by Loan Class Past Due COver 80 Days Due Current Total Loans Accruing

Land and land development and real estate construction

Land and land development 3 - 3 - $ - $ 3,444 BBS ¢ 3,444 868 3 -

Real estate construction = = ] 79,486,688 79,486,888 -
Residential real estate

1-4 family first lien - - - 95,450,611 95,450,611 -

1-4 famnily second lien - - - 1,693,519 1,683,519 -
Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate tenmn - - 244 140,762 244 140,762 -

Owner occupied commercial real estate - - - 23,828,485 23,828,488 -
Commercial and industrial 6,070 1,087,718 1,103,788 184,331,388 185435177 =
Other Loans

Secured - - - 634,721 634,721 -
Tetal loans $ 6,070 $ 1,087,718 $ 1,103,789 $ 633,071,042 $ 634,174,831 $ 5

banescousa.com

9G

VSN ooseueq

SjuswWale1g |eloUBUI4



BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

4. LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table includes the recorded investment and unpaid principal balances for impaired Legacy loans
with the associated allowance amount, if applicable. Management determined the specific valuation allowance
based on the present value of expected future cash flows, discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate,
except when the remaining source of repayment for the loan is the operation or liquidation of the collateral. In
those cases, the current fair value of the collateral, less selling costs was used to determine the specific
valuation allowance recorded.

Also presented are the average recorded investments in the impaired loans and the related amount of interest
recognized during the time within the period that the impaired loans were impaired. The average balances are
calculated based on the month-end balances of the financing receivables of the period reported.

December 31, 2015

Interest
Income
Unpaid Average Interest Recognized
Recorded Principal Valuation Recorded Income on a Cash
Impaired Loans by Class Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized Basis
With No Specific Allowance
Recorded:
Land and land development $ - % - $ - % 50,334 % - % -
Real estate construction 2318 231,115 - 243,218 - 20,354
1-4 family first lien 307,318 312,330 - 501,483 3481 26,039
Commercial real estate term 1,116,541 1,114,491 - 4,459 592 192,078 -
Owner occupied commercial real estate 1,624,956 1,617,659 - 1,376,267 83,791 -
Commercial and industrial 1,837,721 1,826,964 - 3,702,887 28,828 -
Consumer 4,426 4424 = 1.841 520 =
Total $ 5,122,087 $ 5,116,983 $ - $ 10,335,403 $ 308,698 $ 46,383
with an allowance recorded:
Land and land development 1,839,199 1,838,898 331,923 1,800,007 3,550 $ 61,338
Real estate construction = -
1-4 family first lien 571,814 570,094 4,150 47,851 20,680 -
Commercial real estate term 1,650,870 1,645,796 27456 213171 63,036 -
Owner accupied commercial real estate 987,181 985,300 36 404 1,001,500 66,981 -
Commercial and industrial 3,206,900 3,204,205 739,056 659,464 329 179,902
Consumer 5 2 = 5 = 5
Total $ 8,155,964 $ 8,144,293 $ 1,138,983 $ 3,751,793 $ 154,576 $ 241,240
Impaired Loans by Class
Total
Land and land development % 1,639,189 % 1,828,898 % 331,923 % 1,850,341 % 3,550 % 61,338
Real estate construction and residential real estate 1,110,247 1,113,539 4,180 792,333 24,161 46,393
Commercial real estate 5,279,548 5,263,248 63,860 7,080,530 405,586 -
Cornrnercial and industrial 5,044,621 5,041,169 739,056 4,392,151 29,157 179,002
Consumer 4.436 4424 - 1.84 520 -
Total loans $ 13,278,051 $ 13,261,276 $ 1,138,989 $ 14,087,196 $ 463,274 $ 287,633
December 31, 2014
Interest
Income
Unpaid Average Interest Recognized
[&)] Recorded Principal Valuation Recorded Income on a Cash
~ Impaired Loans by Class Investment Balance Allowance Investment Recognized Basis
With No Specific Allowance
Recorded:
m Land and land developrment $ - $ - $ - $ 199,462 $ - $ 3,226
[\ Real estate construction 257,524 257,524 e 271,389 = 20,694
g 1-4 family first lien 198,488 198,488 - 213,550 - 22,980
n Commercial real estate term 5,081,603 5,086,029 - 6,014,851 236,716 21,138
(@] Owner occupied commercial real estate - - - - - -
(o] Commercial and industrial - - - 219,373 4,130 -
% Total $ 5,537,615 $ 5,522,041 $ - $ 5,918,726 $ 240,846 $ 68,018
>
with an allowance recorded:
Land and land developrment $ 1,817,363 $ 1,815,739 $ 157,561 $ 1,967,395 $ 87,335 $ 3
Commercial real estate term - - - 2,478,387 - -
n Owner occupied commercial real estate 1,018,251 1,012,793 JERaR 1,030,880 70,756 -
5' Commercial and industrial 1,108,034 1,105,789 267,791 656,947 - 53,080
% Total $ 3,943,638 $ 3,934,321 $ 440,684 $ 6,163,609 $ 158,091 $ 53,080
o
Q Impaired Loans by Class
- Total
@ Land and Tand development $ 1,817,383 $ 1,815,739 $ 157,561 % 2,168,858 % 87,335 % 3,226
[V Real estate construction and residential real estate 456,012 456,012 - 484,939 - 43,654
(’._D" Commercial real estate 6,099,854 6,078,822 15,332 9,524,218 307472 21,138
3 Commercial and industrial 1,108,024 1,105,789 267,791 906,320 4130 53.080
% Total loans § 9,481,253 $ 9,456,362 $ 440,684 $ 13,082,335 $ 398,937 $ 121,088
-
2]
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

banescousa.com

December 31,

Legacy and PNCI loans on non-accrual status by loan segment are as follows:

December 31,

2015 2014

Land and land development and real estate construction

Real estate construction $ 1,970,516 $ 257,524
Residential real estate

1-4 family first lien 165,118 198,488

1-4 family junior lien 67,982 -
Commercial real estate

Commercial real estate term - 246,469
Commercial and industrial 4,598,979 1,103,788
Total loans $ 6,802,595 $ 1,806,269

The following tables present troubled debt restructurings as of December 31, 2015 and 2014:

Total
2015 Accrual Non-Accrual Troubled Debt
Status Status Restructured
Land and land development and real estate construction
Land and land development 3 99,498 $ 1,739,401 $ 1,838,899
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 570,004 165,117 735,211
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate term 2,467,847 - 2,467,847
Owner occupied commercial real estate 985,300 - 985,300
Total $ 4,122,739 $ 1,904,518 $ 6,027,257
Total
2014 Accrual Non-Accrual Troubled Debt
Status Status Restructured
Land and land development and real estate construction
Land and land development $  1,815739 $ - 3 1,815,739
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien - 168,488 198,488
Commercial real estate
Commercial real estate tem 3,868,532 246,469 4,115,001
Owner occupied commercial real estate 1,012,783 - 1,012,793
Total $ 6,697,064 $ 444,957 $ 7,142,021
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

LOANS AND ALLOWANCE FOR LOAN LOSSES (CONTINUED)

The following table presents newly restructured Legacy and PNCI loans that occurred during the year ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Recorded Recorded
2015 Investment Investment
Number of Prior to Atter
Modifications Modification Modification
Land and land development and real estate construction
Land and land development 1 $ 101,524 $ 99 798
Residential real estate
1-4 family first lien 1 584,931 571,814
Commercial and industrial 4 4,209,650 4,514 417
Total 6 $ 4,896,105 $ 5,186,029
Recorded Recorded
Recorded Recorded
2014 Investment Investment
Number of Prior to After
Modifications Modification Modification

Land and land development and real estate construction

Land and land development - $ - 3 -
Residential real estate

1-4 family first lien - - -
Commercial and industrial = B -

Total $ - $

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no troubled debt restructuring loans in which a concession was
made and the loan re-defaulted during the same year.

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, there were no commitments to lend additional funds to borrowers with an
impaired loan.

PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

6S
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Property and equipment, net, is summarized as follows at December 31:

2015 2014
Leasehold improvements $ 4,372,339 $ 4,316,707
Fumniture and equipment 3,142,134 3,244,483
Computer equipment and software 2,090,115 2,550,789
Work in progress 37,150 13,376
Art work 12,911 12,911

9,654,649 10,138,266
Less:
Accumulated depreciation and amortization 6,272,085 5,572,284
Property and equipment, net $ 3,382,564 $ 4,565,982

Depreciation and amortization of property and equipment amounted to $1,533,386 and $1,553,744 for the years
ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively.



BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

6. FORECLOSED ASSETS, NET
The Bank’s inventory of foreclosed assets, net by property type, is listed below at December 31, 2015 and 2014:
2015 2014
Amount Amount
Land and land development $ 2,796,500 $ 2,850,721
Foreclosed assets are presented net of an allowance for losses. An analysis of the allowance for losses on
foreclosed assets is as follows at December 31:
2015 2014
Balance at beginning of year $ 158,970 $ 158,970
Provision for losses 54,221 -
Recowery on sales of foreclosed assets - -
Charge offs - -
Balance at end of year $ 214,191 $ 159,970
Expenses applicable to foreclosed assets include the following at December 31:
2015 2014
Provision for losses $ 54,221 3 -
Recowvery on sales of foreclosed assets - -
Operating expenses 69,310 88,091
Balance at end of year $ 123,531 $ 88,091
7. DEPOSITS

banescousa.com

At December 31, 2015, the scheduled maturities of time deposits are as follows:

2016 $ 119,777,578
2017 28,446,558
2018 7,404,098
2018 401,045
2020 3,809,189
Thereafter 10,369

$ 159,848,837

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, overdrafts amounting to $103,697 and $436,012, respectively, were reclassified
from demand deposits to loans on the balance sheets.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

8. SECURITIES SOLD UNDER AGREEMENTS TO REPURCHASE

The following sets forth information concerning securities sold under agreements to repurchase as of December
31:

2015 2014

Securities sold under agreements to repurchase $ 2,136,907 $ 3,950,013

Fair value of securities pledged for

repurchase agreements $ 2,497,653 $ 7,940,337
Maximum amount outstanding at any

month-end during the year $ 9322936 $ 3,195,479
Average amount outstanding during the year $ 6,886,871 $ 2,185,214
Weighted-average interest rate for the year 0.09% 0.07%

All securities sold under agreements to repurchase matured within 30 days of December 31, 2015 and 2014.

9. FEDERAL HOME LOAN BANK ADVANCES

At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank had Federal Home Loan Bank (“FHLB") advances were as follows:

Year of Interest

Maturity Rate 2015 2014
2015 021% 3 - $ 40,000,000
2016 0.34% 20,000,000 -
2017 3.90% 5,000,000 5,000,000
2018 3.64% 5,000,000 5,000,000

$ 30,000,000 $ 50,000,000

The FHLB advances agreement requires the Bank to maintain certain loans as collateral for these advances
(NOTE 4). At December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank was in compliance with this requirement of the FHLB
membership agreement. At December 31, 2015 and 2014, FHLB stock held by the Bank amounted to $2,103,500
and $2,988,300, respectively.

(o]
The Bank has a line of credit with FHLB of Atlanta that allows drawing up to 20% of total assets. As of December
31, 2015 and 2014, the unused portion of the line amounted to approximately $156,982,000 and $127,030,000,

g respectively. Additionally, the Bank maintains unused lines of credits with other financial institutions for

2 approximately $10,000,000.

8

(o]

c

»

>

M

2

oY)

=)

(9]

5

@

=

(0]

3

[©]

=)

7y



BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

10. INCOME TAXES

The provision for (benefit from) income taxes is as follows as of December 31:

2015 2014
Current:
Federal $ 2,034,486 $ 757,902
State 335,758 174,856
Foreign 92,500 -
2,462,744 932,758
Deferred:
Federal $ (750,556) $ 155,560
State (112,786) 11,486
(863,342) 167,046
Total $ 1,599,402 $ 1,099,804

The actual income tax expense for 2015 and 2014 differs from the statutory tax expense for the year (computed
by applying the U.S. federal corporate tax rate of 34% to income before provision for (benefit from) income taxes)

as follows:
Effective
2015 Tax Rate
Federal taxes at statutory rate $ 1,485,062 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal
tax benefit 155,675 3.6%
Change in valuation allowance on expired
carryforward - 0.0%
Other permanent differences (41,335) (1.0%)
Total $ 1,599,402 36.6%
Effective
2014 Tax Rate
Federal taxes at statutory rate $ 1,114,426 34.0%
State income taxes, net of federal
tax benefit 118,872 3.6%
Change in valuation allowance on expired
carryforward (57,451) (1.8%)
Other permanent differences (76,043) (2.3%)
Total $ 1,099,804 33.5%

banescousa.com
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10. INCOME TAXES (CONTINUED)

BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

The Bank's deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are as follows as of December 31:

2015 2014
Deferred tax assets:
Net unrealized loss
on securities available-for-sale $ 1,777,714 $ 1,051,435
Allowance for loan losses 3,004,425 2,539,264
Other real estate owned 227,887 207,484
Accruals 57,928 -
Loan fees 564,480 425,438
Organizational and start-up costs 70,510 84,612
Non-accrual interest 12,805 16,079
Core deposit intangibles 50 -
Provision for off balance sheet risk 251,696 165,799
5,967,495 4,490,112
Less valuation allowance - -
Deferred tax assets 5,967,495 4,490,112
Deferred tax liabilities:
Core deposit intangibles - 30,983
Depreciable property 355,041 436,297
Deferred tax liability 355,041 467,280
Net deferred tax asset $ 5.6124% $ 4,022,832

In assessing the realizability of deferred tax assets, management considered whether it is more likely than not
that some portion or all of the deferred tax assets will not be realized. The ultimate realization of deferred tax
assets is dependent upon the generation of future taxable income during the periods in which those temporary
differences become deductible. Management considers the scheduled reversal of deferred tax liabilities,

€9

projected future taxable income, and tax planning strategies in making this assessment.

VSN oosaueg

recorded as a result of tax uncertainties.
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The U.S. Federal jurisdiction, Florida, and Puerto Rico are the major tax jurisdictions where the Bank files income
tax returns. The Bank is generally no longer subject to U.S. Federal State, or foreign examinations by tax
authorities for years before 2012.

For the year ended December 31, 2015 and 2014, the Bank did not have any unrecognized tax benefits as a
result of tax positions taken during a prior period or during the current period. No interest or penalties have been
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

12.

In the ordinary course of business, the Bank grants loans to and accepts deposits from its executive officers,
principal shareholders, directors, and its affiliates. At December 31, these amounts are summarized as follows:

2015
Range of
Interest Rate Balance
Loans 4.75% $ 536,689
Deposits 0.00% to 1.15% 3,026,128
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.15% 1,754,162
2014
Range of
Interest Rate Balance
Loans 4.50% to 5.13% $ 1,167,299
Deposits 0.05% to 1.00% 2,885,888
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 0.01% to 0.10% 148,014

As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, the aggregate amount of accrued interest receivable from affiliates of the
Bank totaled $0 and $23, respectively. Interest income and interest expense for the years ended December 31,
2015 and 2014 amounted to $25,741 and $55,600 and $39,510 and $23,625, respectively.

EMPLOYEE BENEFIT PLAN

13.

The Bank has adopted a retirement savings plan (the “Retirement Plan”) (a 401k plan) covering substantially all
eligible employees effective January 1, 2005. The Retirement Plan includes a provision that the Bank may
contribute to the accounts of eligible employees for whom a salary deferral is made. Employees may contribute
up to 90% of their compensation subject to certain limits based on federal tax laws. The Bank contributed
$452,870 and $337,105 towards the Retirement Plan in 2015 and 2014, respectively.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK

banescousa.com

The Bank is a party to financial instruments with off-balance sheet risk in the normal course of business to meet
the financing needs of its customers. These financial instruments include commitments to extend credit, unused
lines of credit and standby letters of credit.

The Bank's exposure to credit loss in the event of nonperformance by the other party to the financial instruments
for commitments to extend credit, unused lines of credit, standby letters of credit are represented by the
contractual amount of those instruments. The Bank uses the same credit policies in making these commitments
as it does for on-balance-sheet instruments.

Unfunded commitments under commercial lines of credit, revolving credit lines and overdraft protection
agreements are commitments for possible future extensions of credit to existing customers. These lines of credit
are usually collateralized and usually do not contain a specified maturity date and ultimately may not be drawn
upon to the total extent to which the Bank is committed.
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BANESCO USA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2015 AND 2014

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS WITH OFF-BALANCE-SHEET RISK (CONTINUED)

14.

Commitments to extend credit are agreements to lend to a customer as long as there is no violation of any
condition established in the contract. Commitments generally have fixed-expiration dates or other termination
clauses and may require payment of a fee. Since scme of the commitments are expected to expire without being
drawn upon, the total commitment amounts do not necessarily represent future cash requirements. The Bank
evaluates each customer's credit worthiness on a case-by-case basis. The amount of collateral obtained, if
deemed necessary by the Bank upon extension of credit, is based on management’s credit evaluation of the
counterparty.

Standby letters of credit are conditional commitments issued by the Bank to guarantee the performance of a
customer to a third party. The credit risk involved in issuing letters of credit is essentially the same as that
involved in extending loans to customers. The Bank’s standby letters of credit are secured by cash collateral at
December 31, 2015 and 2014 in the amount of $19,233,054. A summary of the amounts of the Bank’s financial
instruments, with off-balance sheet risk, is as follows at December 31:

2015 2014
Contract Contract
Amount Amount

Unused lines of credit $ 155,948,452 $ 101,777,492
Commitment to extend credit 780,000 1,800,000
Standby letters of credit 22,307,312 27,637,601

REGULATORY MATTERS

The Bank, as a state-chartered bank, is subject to various regulatory capital requirements administered by the
federal banking agencies. Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and
possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken, could have a direct material effect on
the Bank’s financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines and the regulatory framework for prompt
corrective action, the Bank must meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of the Bank's
assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory accounting practices. The
Bank's capital amounts and classification are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about
components, risk weightings and other factors.

Effective January 1, 2015 (with some changes transitioned into full effectiveness over two to four years), the Bank
became subject to new capital requirements adopted by the FDIC. These new requirements create a new
required ratio for commen equity tier 1 capital, increase the tier 1 capital ratios, change the risk weight of certain
assets for purposes of the risk-based capital ratios, create an additional capital conservation buffer over the
required capital ratios and change what qualifies as capital for purposes of meeting these various capital
requirements. Beginning in 2016, failure to maintain the required capital conservation buffer will limit the ability of
the Bank to pay dividends, repurchase shares or pay discretionary bonuses.

Under the new capital regulations, the minimum capital ratios are: (1) common equity tier 1 capital ratio of 4.5%
of risk-weighted assets, (2) a tier 1 capital ratio of 6.0% of risk-weighted assets, {3) a total capital ratic of 8.0% of
risk-weighted assets, and (4) a tier 1 capital to average assets ratio of 4.0%. Common equity tier 1 capital
generally consists of common stock and retained earnings, subject to applicable regulatory adjustments and
deductions.

The Bank has elected to permanently opt-out of the inclusion of accumulated other comprehensive income in our
capital calculations, as permitted by the regulations. This opt-out will reduce the impact of market volatility on our
regulatory capital levels.
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The Bank will have to maintain a capital conservation buffer consisting of additional common equity tier 1 capital
greater than 2 5% to risk-weighted assets above the required minimum levels. This new capital conservation
buffer requirement will be phased in beginning in January 2016 at 0.625% of risk-weighted assets and increasing
each year until fully implemented in January 2019.

The FDIC's prompt corrective action standards also changed effective January 1, 2015. Under the new
standards, in order to be considered well-capitalized, the Bank must have a common equity tier 1 capital ratio of
6.5% (new), a tier 1 ratio of 8.0% (increased from 6.0%), a total risk-based capital ratio of 10.0% (unchanged)
and a leverage ratio of 5.0% (unchanged). The Bank meets all these new requirements, including the full capital
conservation buffer.

As of December 31, 2015, the Bank was well-capitalized under the regulatory framework for prompt corrective
action. There are no conditions or events since December 31, 2015 that management believes have changed the
Bank’s category.

The Bank’s actual capital amounts and ratios as of December 31, 2015 and 2014 are presented in the following
table:

Minimum
To Be Well Capitalized
Minimum Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Capital Requirements Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2015
Total risk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) $ 98,737,095 13.3% $ 599,592,096 §.0% $ 74,490,120 10.0%
Tier 1 capital
{to risk-weighted assets) $ 90,240,671 12.1% $ 44,694,072 6.0% $ 59,592,096 6.0%
Common equity tier 1 capital
{to risk-weighted assets) 3 90,240,671 12.1% 3 33,520,554 4.5% 3 48,418,578 6.5%
Tier 1 capital
(to average total assets) $ 90,240,871 9.7% 3 37,286,510 4.0% $ 46,608,138 5.0%
Minimum
To Be Well Capitalized
Minimum Under Prompt Corrective
Actual Capital Requirements Action Provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
As of December 31, 2014
Total risk-based capital
(to risk-weighted assets) $ 94,967,309 14.2% $ 53.381.578 §.0% $ 66,726,973 10.0%
Tier 1 capital
(to risk-weighted assets) $ 87,302,144 13.1% $ 26,630,783 4.0% $ 40,038,184 8.0%
Tier 1 capital
(to average total assets) % 87,302,144 10.2% $ 638,629,452 4.0% $ 63,639,452 5.0%

Bank regulations limit the amount of dividends that may be paid without prior approval of the Bank’s regulatory
agency. Payment of dividends is restricted for a minimum of three years from the commencement date of
operations.
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In December 2013, the Bank entered into a Consent Agreement with the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation
(FDIC) and the Florida Office of Financial Regulation (OFR), in connection with certain deficiencies in its
compliance with the Bank Secrecy Act (BSA) and Anti-Money Laundering (AML) laws and regulations. On April 1,
2016 the FDIC terminated the Consent Agreement issued to the Bank on December 5, 2013.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

19

VSN oosaueg

SlusWaelelg |BloUBUI

Operating Leases

The Bank is obligated under noncancellable operating leases for office space and for the rental of office
equipment expiring on various date through 2023. Minimum rent payments under operating leases are
recognized on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease. These leases contain escalation clauses providing
for increased rent expense based on either a fixed rate or an increase in the average consumer price index.
Rental expense for office space and for office equipment was $2 635,863 and $2,697,782 for the years ended
December 31, 2015 and 2014, respectively, and is included in occupancy expense in the accompanying
statements of operations.

At December 31, 2015, future minimum rental commitments under these noncancellable leases were
approximately as follows:

Year ending December 31,

2016 $ 1,916,427
2017 1,791,600
2018 1,721,141
2019 1,325,472
2020 1,136,003

Thereafter 1,432,449

$§ 9,323,092

Loss Contingencies

Loss contingencies, including claims and legal actions arising in the ordinary course of business, are recorded as
liabilities when the likelihood of loss is probable and an amount or range of loss can be reasonably estimated.
Management does not believe there are such matters that will have a material effect on the financial statements.
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Determination of Fair Value

The Bank uses fair value measurements to record fair value adjustments to certain assets and liabilities and to
determine fair value disclosures. In accordance with the fair value measurements accounting guidance, the fair
value of a financial instrument is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date. Fair value is best determined based
upon quoted market prices. However, in many instances, there are no quoted market prices for the Bank's
various financial instruments. In cases where quoted market prices are not available, fair values are based on
estimates using present value or other valuation technigues. Those techniques are significantly affected by the
assumptions used, including the discount rate and estimates of future cash flows. Accordingly, the fair value
estimates may not be realized in an immediate settlement of the instrument.

The recent fair value guidance provides a consistent definition of fair value, which focuses on exit price in an
orderly transaction (that is, not a forced liquidation or distressed sale) between market participants at the
measurement date under current market conditions. If there has been a significant decrease in the volume and
level of activity for the asset or liabilty, a change in valuation technique or the use of multiple valuation
techniques may be appropriate. In such instances, determining the price at which willing market participants
would transact at the measurement date under current market conditions depends on the facts and
circumstances and requires the use of significant judgment. The fair value is a reasonable point within the range
that is most representative of fair value under current market conditions.

Fair Value Hierarchy

In accordance with this guidance, the Bank groups its financial assets and financial liabilities generally measured
at fair value in three levels, based on the markets in which the assets and liabilities are traded and the reliability
of the assumptions used to determine fair value. There have been no changes in the methodeologies used at
December 31, 2015 and 2014.

Level 1 — Valuation is based on quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the reporting
entity has the ability to access at the measurement date. Level 1 assets and liabilities generally include debt and
equity securities that are traded in an active exchange market. Valuations are obtained from readily available
pricing sources for market transactions involving identical assets or liabilities.

Level 2 — Valuation is based on inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly. The valuation may be based on quoted prices for similar assets or
liabilities; quoted prices in markets that are not active; or other inputs that are observable or can be corroborated
by observable market data for substantially the full term of the asset or liability.

Level 3 — Valuation is based on unobservable inputs that are supported by little or no market activity and that are
significant to the fair value of the assets or liabilities. Level 3 assets and liabilities include financial instruments
whose value is determined using pricing models, discounted cash flow methodologies, or similar techniques, as
well as instruments for which determination of fair value requires significant management judgment or estimation.

A financial instrument’s categorization within the valuation hierarchy is based upon the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement.
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Fair Value Hierarchy (continued)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair value of each significant class of financial
instruments for which it is practicable to estimate fair value:

Cash and Cash Equivalents - For these short-term instruments, the carrying amount is a reascnable estimate of
fair value.

Investment Securities - When instruments are traded in secondary markets and quoted market prices do not exist
for such securities, management generally relies on prices obtained from independent vendors or third party
broker-dealers. Management reviews pricing methodologies provided by the vendors and third party broker-
dealers in order to determine if observable market information is being utilized. Securities measured with pricing
provided by independent vendors or third party broker-dealers are classified within Level 2 of the hierarchy and
often involve using quoted market prices for similar securities, pricing models or discounted cash flow analyses
utilizing inputs observable in the market where available. The specific investment holdings which are included in
the Level 2 classification are U.S government issued securities; U.S. government agencies collateralized
mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed securities, corporate bonds and municipal securities.

FHLB Stock - The carrying value of the FHLB stock approximates fair value based on the redemption provisions
of the FHLB.

Loans - For variable-rate loans that reprice frequently and have no significant change in credit risk, fair values are
based on carrying values. Fair values for certain fixed-rate mortgage (e.g. one-to-four family residential),
commercial real estate and commercial loans are estimated using discounted cash flow analyses, using interest
rates currently being offered for loans with similar terms to borrowers of similar credit quality.

Accrued Interest Receivable and Payable - Carrying amounts of accrued interest receivable and payable
approximates its fair value due to the short-term nature of these financial instruments.

Deposits - Fair value of demand deposits, money market and saving accounts is the amount payable on demand
(carrying amount) at December 31, 2015 and 2014. The fair value of fixed-maturity time deposits are estimated
using discounted cash flow analysis, using the rates currently offered for deposits of similar remaining maturities.

Borrowed Funds - Borrowings under repurchase agreements and other short-term borrowings maturing within
ninety days approximate their fair values. Fair values of other long-term borrowings are estimated using
discounted cash flow analysis based on the Bank’s current incremental borrowing rates for similar types of
borrowing arrangements.

Unused Lines of Credit, Commitments to Extend Credit. and Standby Letters of Credit - The fair value of off-
balance-sheet, credit-related financial instruments are estimated using the fees currently charged to enter into
similar agreements, taking into account the remaining terms of the agreements and the present creditworthiness
of the counterparties.
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Recurring Basis

The following table represents the Bank's financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis for
each of the fair value hierarchy levels:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2015
U.8. govemnment agencies issued securities $ - $ 38,613,792 $ - $ 38,613,792
U.S. govemment agencies 8,775,849 8,775,849
Collateralized mortgage obligations - 4,022,465 - 4,022 465
Mortgage-backed securities - 78,666,244 - 78,666,244
Corporate bond - 23,023,894 - 23,023,894
Municipal securities - 35,842,910 - 35,842 910
3 - $ 188,945,154 $ - $ 188,945,154
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2014
U.S. govemment agencies issued securities $ - 3 34,926,784 $ - $ 34,926 784
U.8. govemment agencies 13,703,245 13,703,245
Collateralized mortgage obligations - 4,965,994 - 4,965,994
Mortgage-backed securities - 116,280,582 - 116,280,582
Corporate bond - 28,730,629 - 28,730,629
Municipal securities - 27,233,134 - 27,233,124
$ - $ 225,840,368 $ - $ 225,840,368

There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at December 31, 2015 and 2014,
Items Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis
Impalred Loans

Certain assets that are considered impaired are not measured at fair value on an ongoing basis but are subject to
fair value measurements. These instruments are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis and include
certain loans that have been deemed to necessitate an impairment analysis.

When a loan is deemed impaired, the Bank's management measures impairment based on the present value of
expected future cash flows discounted at the loan’s effective interest rate, except that as a practical method,
impairment may be measured based on the fair value of the loan or on the fair value of the underlying collateral if
the loan is collateral dependent. As of December 31, 2015 and 2014, loans deemed to be impaired based on fair
value measurement totaled $13,278,051 and $9,481,253, respectively, with the portion deemed to be impaired
included in the allowance for loan losses.

Collateral dependent loans and loans based on the present value of expected future cash flows discounted at the
loan's effective interest rate are classified in Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy as the valuation technique requires
inputs that are both significant and unobservable.
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis {continued)
Foreclosed Assets

Foreclosed assets are valued at the lesser of the third party appraisals less management's estimate of the costs
to sell or the carrying cost of the foreclosed asset. Appraisals generally use the market approach valuation
technique and use market observable data to formulate an opinion of the fair value of the properties. However,
the appraiser uses professional judgment in determining the fair value of the property and the Bank may also
adjust the value for changes in market conditions subsequent to the valuation date when current appraisals are
not available. As a consequence of the carrying cost or the third party appraisal and adjustments therein, the fair
values of the properties are considered a Level 3 valuation.

The following table represents the Bank’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a nonrecurring for each
of the fair value hierarchy levels:

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2015
Impaired loans $ - $ - $ 13,278,051 $ 13,278,051
Foreclosed assets = & 2,796,500 $ 2,796,500
$ = $ - $ 16,074,551 $ 16,074,551
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
December 31, 2014
Impaired loans $ = $ & $ 9,481,253 $ 9,481,253
Foreclosed assets - - 2,850,721 $ 2,850,721
$ 2 $ - $ 12,331,974 $ 12,331,974

There were no financial liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis at December 31, 2015 and
2014.

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Bank’s financial instruments were as follows at December
31, 2015:

2015
Camrying Fair
Amount Value
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 46,446,303 $ 46,446,626
Investment securities available for sale 188,945,154 188,945,154
Investment securities held to maturity 1,233,050 1,211,326
Federal Home Loan Bank stock 2,103,500 2,103,500
Loans, net 687,666,775 697,149,915
Accrued interest receivable 2,417,076 2,417,076
Financial liabilities:
Demand, money market and saving accounts $ 657,301,451 $ 657,301,451
Time deposits 159,848,837 160,185,215
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase 2,136,907 2,136,907
Federal Home Loan Bank advance 30,000,000 30,529,665
Accrued interest payable 704,954 704,954
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Items Measured at Fair Value on a Nonrecurring Basis (continued)

The carrying amounts and estimated fair values of the Bank's financial instruments were as follows

31, 2014

Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Investment securities available for sale
Federal Home Loan Bank stock
Loans, net
Accrued interest receivable

Financial liabilities:
Demand, money market and saving accounts
Time deposits
Securities sold under agreements to repurchase
Federal Home Loan Bank advance
Accrued interest payable

at December

2014
Carrying Fair

Amount Value
32,890,053 $ 32,880,053
225,840,368 225,840,368
2,988,300 2,988,300
643,582,475 655,219,829
2,168,692 2,168,692
654,053,353 $ 654,053,353
122,687,150 123,194,198
3,850,013 3,950,013
£0,000,000 50,418,110
£§72,782 572,782

¢l

VSN ooseueq

SjuswWale1g |eloUBUI4



€/

VSN oosaueyg

SN 10B1U0D

CONTACT

US

DomMmEsTic USA

Customer Service
T. 786.552.0524

Automated Voice Response System
T. 1.888.228.1576

Email
CustomerService@BanescoUSA.com

INTERNATIONAL

Customer Service
T. 0.800.1.BanescoBan | 0.800.1228226

Automated Voice Response System
T. 0.800.1.BanescolVR | 0.800.1228487

Email
InternationalDept@BanescoUSA.com

Banescousa.com ,@Banescousa

LENDING DEPARTMENT

Residential / Consumer Lending
T. 786.552.0570
E. ResidentialLending@BanescoUSA.com

Consumer Real Estate Lending
T. 786.552.0562
E. CommercialLending@BanescoUSA.com

Commercial Loans
T. 786.552.0587
E. CommercialLoans@BanescoUSA.com

Construction Lending
T. 786.552.0590
E. ConstructionLending@BanescoUSA.com

f Banesco Usa (@ Banescousa
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